

PRODUCTIVITY IMPROVEMENT OF SUB-ASSEMBLY PROCESS IN CASTING INDUSTRY USING LEAN MANUFACTURING TOOL





AIMAN SYAFIQ BIN AZNAM

FACULTY OF MANUFACTURING ENGINEERING 2020/2021

DECLARATION

I hereby, declared this report entitled "Productivity Improvement of Sub-Assembly Process in Casting Industry Using Lean Manufacturing Tool" is the result of my own research except as cited in references.



APPROVAL

This report is submitted to the Faculty of Manufacturing Engineering of Universiti Teknikal Malaysia Melaka as a partial fulfilment of the requirement for Degree of Manufacturing Engineering (Hons). The member of the supervisory committee is as follow:



ABSTRAK

Kualiti dan kuantiti adalah elemen utama yang membantu syarikat untuk terus bersaing dengan yang lain. Teknologi terus meningkat dari hari ke hari dan ini secara tidak langsung menyumbang kepada peningkatan permintaan pelanggan. Pembuatan kejat dapat membantu mengurangkan kos, pembaziran, masa menunggu, kecacatan dan meningkatkan kepantasan penghantaran produk. Projek ini bertujuan untuk menganalisis aliran produk di jabatan subpemasangan Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd, yang terletak di Cheng, Melaka. Pernyataan masalah dalam hal ini adalah bagi pihak pengurusan untuk mewujudkan alat visual untuk proses baru industri tuangan yang merupakan proses sub-pemasangan. Proses subpemasangan adalah proses baru dalam Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd dan pembuatan kejat perlu diterapkan untuk meningkatkan produktiviti untuk merealisasikan produk mereka. Tidak ada pautan kawalan produksi dan penjadualan seperti perencanaan produksi dan peramalan permintaan terhadap penjadualan pengeluaran menggunakan parameter operasi untuk sistem pembuatan yang menentukan kadar produksi. Objektif utama projek ini adalah untuk menyiasat proses semasa setiap model di jabatan sub-pemasangan berdasarkan matriks keluarga produk, untuk mengenal pasti model yang perlu menjalankan alat ramping untuk mengurangkan kos, pembaziran, masa menunggu, kecacatan dan kelajuan penghantaran produk dan untuk mengembangkan Pemetaan Aliran Nilai (VSM) untuk model yang dipilih. Jumlah nama stesen / model seperti SAS, MSB, omboh and galas dianalisis berdasarkan proses bilangan, kuota per shif, berat kasar (kg) dan tenaga manusia di jabatan sub-pemasangan selama 9 bulan yang lalu. Masalah seperti Standard Work sheet yang tidak cekap dan kemacetan proses dianalisis. VSM masa depan diciptakan, peta kawasan kerja disusun semula dan reka bentuk alat sokongan plat bawah dibuat untuk mengurangkan masa kitaran dan waktu tunggu. Pelaksanaan alat pembuatan kejat ini meningkatkan peningkatan produktiviti proses sub-pemasangan di Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd

ABSTRACT

Quality with quantity is the key element that helps the company remain in competition with others. Technology continues to rise day by day and this indirectly contributes to client demands rising. Lean manufacturing can help to reduce the costs, waste, waiting time, defect and improve product delivery speed. This project seeks to analyse the product flow in an assembly line of Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd, located in Cheng, Melaka. The problem statement in this is for management to establish a visualized tool for the new process of casting industry which is sub assembly process. The sub-assembly process is a new process in Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd and therefore lean manufacturing need to be apply to improve the productivity for their product realization. There is no links production control and scheduling functions such as production planning and demand forecasting to production scheduling using operating parameters for the manufacturing system which determines the production rate. The main objectives of this project are to investigate the current process of each model in sub-assembly department based on the product family matrix, to identify the model that need to carry out lean tools to reduce the cost, waste, waiting time, defect and product delivery speed and to develop the Value Stream Mapping (VSM) for selected model. The total station name/model such as SAS, MSB, Piston and Bearing is analysed based on the number process, quota per shift, gross weight (kg) and man power in sub-assembly department for past 9 month. The problem such as inefficient Standard Work sheet and bottleneck of process was analysed. The Future VSM was created, the map of work area is restructured and the design of base plate supporting tool is created to reduce the cycle time and waiting time. This implementation of lean manufacturing tool increased the productivity improvement of sub-assembly process in Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd.

DEDICATION

I dedicate this work to my father Mr. Aznam bin Abdullah, my mother Mrs. Rohaya binti Zakaria, and my adored brother and sister, Amir and Ezzah who has always encouraged me all the way from the beginning to end and make sure this report is finished. Thank you, for the support and my love for you all can never be quantified.



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

First of all, thanks to ALLAH S.W.T for his guidance and mercy in giving me full strength to complete this PSM 2 report. Even though I facing with a lot of difficulties in completing this report, I still managed to complete it.

I would like to express my gratitude to my supervisor Profesor Madya Dr. Mohd Rizal Bin Salleh, for useful comment, remark and engagement through the learning process of this PSM 2 project. Whenever I had trouble spot or question regarding writing my report PSM 2, Dr Rizal is always opens to help me. He consistently steered me in the right direction wherever he though I need it.

UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA

Next, I would like to express my gratitude to Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd, my industrial supervisor Mr. Mohamad Aswan Ismail and Mr. Muhammad Syakiran.bin Lokman to allow me to perform my PSM 2 project.

Finally, I express my very profound to everybody for keep supporting me and proofing me huge encouragements throughout the month of study on writing this PSM 2 report.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Abstra	ıki	
Abstra	ict ii	
Dedic	ation iii	
Ackno	wledgement iv	
Table	of Contents v	
List of	Tables	
List of	f Figures	
List of	f Abbreviations xiv	V
List of	f Symbol xv	
	اونيوم سيتي تيكنيكل مليسيا ملاك	
CHAI	PTER 1: INTRODUCTION	
1.1	Background 1	
1.2	Problem Statement	
1.3	Objectives	
1.4	Scopes	
CHAI	PTER 2: LITERATURE REVIEW	
2.1	Company background and Introduction 8	
	2.1.1 Specify Value	
	2.1.2 Identify the Value Stream	

	2.1.3	Flow	12
	2.1.4	Pull	12
	2.1.5	Perfection	13
2.2	Produ	ct Family Matrix	14
	2.2.1	Concept of Product Family Matrix	14
	2.2.2	Creating Product Family Matrix	15
	2.2.3	Product Routing Matrix	15
2.3	Time	Observation Sheet	16
2.4	Standa	ard Work Combination Sheet	18
	2.4.1	TAKT Time	18
	2.4.2	Creating Standard Work Combination Sheet	19
2.4.8	KAIZ	EN	20
		2.4.8.1 KAIZEN key features	20
		2.4.8.2 KAIZEN strategy	21
		2.4.8.3 Toyota Production System	22
		2.4.8.4 Example of KAIZEN analysis tools	23
	2.4.9	Value Stream Mapping (VSM)	24
		2.4.9.1 Value Stream Mapping analysis tools	25
		2.4.9.2 Value Stream Mapping Symbols	27
CHAI	PTER 3	: METHODOLOGY	28
3.1	Introd	uction	28

	3.2.2	Literature review	30
	3.2.3	Data collection	30
	3.2.4	Data analysis	34
	3.2.5	Identify the product family matrix	35
	3.2.6	Develop time observation sheet	44
	3.2.7	Develop Standard Work Combination Sheet	47
	3.2.8	Develop the Value Stream Mapping (VSM)	50
CHAF	PTER 4	: RESULT AND DISCUSSION	53
4.1	Data c	ollection	53
	4.1.1	Time Observation Sheet	53
	4.1.2	Standard Work Combination Sheet	57
4.2	Currer	nt State Value Stream Mapping	61
	4.2.1	Process Flow at the Production Line	61
4.3	Proble		63
4.4	Future	State Value Stream Mapping	64
	4.4.1	Restructured the map of the work area of Standard Work Sheet	65
	4.4.2	Base plate supporting tool	70
CHAF	PTER 4	: CONCLUSION	78
REFE	RENC	ES	79
APPE	APPENDICES		

А	List of the total station name/model run in sub-assembly department	83
В	Good and information flow	84
С	Project planning schedule for PSM 1 and PSM 2	85
D	Product workplace in Sub-Assembly Department	86



LIST OF TABLES

Table 1.1: Total station name/model run with the number process, quota per shift, 3 gross weight (kg) and man power in sub-assembly department for past 9 month.

Table 2.1: Example of Product Family Matrix	14
Table 2.2: Metal Manufacturing Product Routing Matrix	15
Table 2.3: Example of Time Observation Sheet.	17
Table 2.4: Example of Standard Work Combination Sheet	. 19

 Table 3.1: Manufacturing
 Information
 of
 Various
 Models
 of
 Sub-Assembly
 31

 department
 departme

Table 3.2: Product family matrix for Spring Adjustment Screw (SAS)	36
Table 3.3: Product family matrix for Piston	36
Table 3.4: Product family matrix for Bearing	37
Table 3.5: The detail process of station name/model run	. 38

Table 4.1 : Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model	54
Table 4.2 : Time Observation Sheet for Spring adj. Screw assy ts73v bl model	. 54
Table 4.3 : Time Observation Sheet for Spring Adj. Screw Assy Ts92 – New model	. 55
Table 4.4 : Time Observation Sheet for Damping Piston Assy ts91/92 model	. 55
Table 4.5 : Time Observation Sheet for Pinion Bearing Bottom Assy 2-5 model	. 56

Table 4.6 : Time Observation Sheet for Bearing Housing Assy 7400/8600 model
Table 4.7: Standard Work Combination Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model
Table 4.8: Standard Work Combination Sheet for Spring adj. Screw assy ts73v bl model 58
Table 4.9: Standard Work Combination Sheet for Spring Adj. Screw Assy Ts92 – New 58
Table 4.10: Standard Work Combination Sheet for Damping Piston Assy ts91/92 model 59
Table 4.11: Standard Work Combination Sheet for Pinion Bearing Bottom Assy 2-5 model59
Table 4.12: Standard Work Combination Sheet Bearing Housing Assy 7400/8600 model60
Table 4.13 : Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model
Table 4.14: Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model
Table 4.15: Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model before improvement68
Table 4.16: Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model after improvement68
Table 4.17: Standard Work Combination Sheet before improvement
Table 4.18: Standard Work Combination Sheet after improvement
Table 4.19: Current Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model
Table 4.20: Expected Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model
Table 4.21: Current Standard Work Combination Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model 74
Table 4.22: Expected Standard Work Combination Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model 75

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 2.1: TQM structured system model	9
Figure 2.2: Principle of TQM	9
Figure 2.3: Example of VSM	11
Figure 2.4: Kaizen Management System	21
Figure 2.5: 4 Keys Categories of Toyota Production System	22
Figure 2.6: Example of KAIZEN	23
Figure 2.7: VSM Steps.	25
Figure 2.8: Current state VSM	26
Figure 2.9: Future state VSM	26
Figure 2.10: VSM symbols	27
Figure 3.1: Flow chart of the whole view on the development of lean manufacturing for research in PSM 1 and PSM 2.	29
Figure 3.2: Manufacturing Information of Various Models of sub-Assembly department	34
Figure 3.3: SAS ts73v bl	38
Figure 3.4: SAS ts83 bl	38

Figure 3.5: SAS ts83 en 2-5 bl	38
Figure 3.6: SAS ts92 – new	38
Figure 3.7: SAS ts93 en2-5	39
Figure 3.8: SAS ts73v – new	40
Figure 3.9: Cushion bc valve assy	40
Figure 3.10: Damping piston assy ts91/92	41
Figure 3.11: Damping piston assy ts90 fork pusher	41
Figure 3.12: Opening piston assy ts90 fork pusher	41
Figure 3.13 : Piston assy 7/8600	42
Figure 3.14: List of bearing which put needle bearing first then put O-ring	42
Figure 3.15: List of bearing which put O-ring first then put needle bearing	43
Figure 3.16: Flowchart of developing the time observation sheet	44
Figure 3.17: Standard Work Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model	45
Figure 3.18: Flowchart of developing the Standard Work Combination Sheet	47
Figure 3.19: Flow chart of the whole view on the development of VSM	50
Figure 4.1: Current Value Stream Mapping for Piston Assy 7/8600 model	62
Figure 4.2: Fishbone or Ishikawa cause and effect diagram of the potential problem6 for Piston Assy 7/8600 model.	63
Figure 4.3: Future Value Stream Mapping for Piston Assy 7/8600 model	64
Figure 4.4: Standard Work Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model	66
Figure 4.5: The operator invert the piston after all 10 pieces is completed the	66
Figure 4.6: Standard Work Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model	67
Figure 4.5: The operator immediately invert the piston each time after pressing the	67

Figure 4.8: The size of PLV and piston 70
Figure 4.9: The size of the hydraulics' pressing rod
Figure 4.10: Design 1 of base plate supporting tool 71
Figure 4.11: Design 2 of base plate supporting tool 71
Figure 4.12: Design 2 Base plate supporting tool with piston in hydraulic press machine 72
Figure 4.13: Future Value Stream Mapping for Piston Assy 7/8600 model
Figure 4.14: Comparison Cycle Time and TAKT time before and after lean for Piston 76
Assy 7/8600 model based on demand

Figure 4.15: Cycle time and TAKT time before and after lean for Piston Assy 7/8600..... 77
model

Figure 5.1, 5.2, and 5.3: List of The total station name/model run in sub-assembly	83
department.	
Figure 5.4: Good and information flow	84
Figure 5.5: Project planning schedule for PSM 1 and PSM 2	85
Figure 5.6: Bearing housing workplace	86
Figure 5.7: CBC machine	86
Figure 5.8: Piston workplace	87
Figure 5.9: SAS workplace	87
Figure 5.10: Screw bag workplace	88

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

PSM	-	Projek Sarjana Muda
LM	-	Lean Manufacturing
TPM	-	Total Productive Maintenance
VSM	-	Value Stream Mapping
SAS	-	Spring Adjustment Screw
MSB	- MALAY	Manual Screw Bag
MIT	- Will	Massachusetts Institute of Technology
ASSY	F IN	Assembly
BC	- staning	Bolt Circle
ANSI	سا ملاك	American National Standards Institute
PDCA	UNIVERS	Plan Do Check Action
TQM	-	Total Quality Management
SWCS	-	Standard Work Combination Sheet
VA	-	Value Added
NVA	-	Non-Value Added
JIT	-	Just-In-Time
PLV	-	Pressure Loading Valve
RH	-	Right Hand
LH	-	Left Hand

LIST OF SYMBOL

kg

Kilogram



CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

WALAYSIA

In today's rising competitive world, it is very important for manufacturing and service industry to constantly develop. Quality with quantity is the main element which helps company to stay compete with others. Technology keep rising day by day and this indirectly leads the rising of customer demands. Parihar et al. (2012) found that many company and organizations has realized that quality is the most important competitive tools especially for product and service development. In order to stay in this competition of the current markets, manufacturing companies need to analyse, evaluate and continuously improve their manufacturing systems. In order for this to happen, the application of Lean is needed so that any problems, improvement and opportunities can be recognised (Mitrogogos et al 2018). Liker and Lander (2007) stated that during late 1980's, International Motor Vehicle Program in Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT) invented the term "lean production". However, in early 1950's, the first idea was originate by Taiichi Ohno of Toyota Motors. There is a lot of varieties of Lean Manufacturing (LM) tools and techniques which are very useful such as Value Stream Mapping (VSM), Quality Circle, Plan Do Check Action (PDCA), 5S housekeeping, 5 Whys, Total Productive Maintenance (TPM), etc (Netland et al 2016).

Lean also mainly focus on any cost reduction by eliminate the non-value-added activities which by apply, identify and eliminate waste from each procedure in the production chain including the time, motion, energy and resources (Choomlucksana et al, 2015). Manufacturing organizations can be more competitive, productive and more profitable by focusing on reducing and eliminate the waste (Gunaki and Teli, 2015). Lean is very useful in term of assisting and eliminating waste which is then can improve the cost and production time. With a very little inventory, lean manufacturing has high service demands as well as throughput. Waste include the excessive amount of equipment, materials, working time and parts which is very important in any production. Although, many organizations have the availability and knowledge in operation management and resources, they still struggling to become lean (Nguyen et al 2016). Therefore, it is very important for them to evaluate the current operation in their system and operation. There are 7 type of waste that usually take place which are Transportation, Inventory, Motion, Waiting, Over-processing, Over-production and Defect (Rajule et al, 2018).

To make sure any industry or organization to keep compete, surviving and growing, they must make sure that their product, design and service is better. To achieve this, lean manufacturing practice need to be used so that operational performance can improve better. Rajule et al. (2018) also stated that unsuccessful Lean may happen if the application is poor and have only partial vision. The study is conducted at Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd. which is one of the casting industry and a multinational manufacturing company with worldwide operation. This study is about productivity improvement for sub-assembly process in casting industry using lean manufacturing tool method.

1.2 Problem Statement

One of the most important things for any company to keep competing and surviving is to always meet their customer's demand. Product realization process can been affected by the nature of the market. Therefore, it is important for companies to do improvement in their productivity for their product realization process. The problem statement in this research of lean manufacturing and productivity improvement is for management to establish a visualized tool for the new process of casting industry which is sub assembly process. Based on the Table 1.1 and Figure 1.1 below, it is shown the total number product/model in sub-assembly department with different number of process, quota per shift, gross weight (kg) and man power for the past 9 months. Because this is a new process, Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd has been under continuous pressure especially to reduce the costs, waste, waiting time, defect and improve product delivery speed. There is no links production control and scheduling functions such as production planning and demand forecasting to production scheduling using operating parameters for the manufacturing system which determines the production rate. Thus, this study is needed to solve this problem.

 Table 1.1: Total station name/model run with the number process, quota per shift, gross

 weight (kg) and man power in sub-assembly department for past 9 month.

 UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA

 (Summa Department has Department for D

(Source: Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd).

STATION NAME / MODEL RUN	MATERIAL	PROCESS	QUOTA PER SHIFT	GROSS WEIGHT (KG)	MAN POWER
Spring Adjustment					
Screw (SAS)					
Spring adj. Screw assy ts73v bl	28140903150	5	1000	64	1
Spring adj. Screw assy ts83 bl	28140901150	5	1600	93	1

Spring adj. Screw assy ts83 en 2-5 bl	28140904150	5	1600	93	1
Spring adj. Screw assy ts92 – new	24336402150	6	1000	64	2
Spring adj. Screw assy ts93 en2-5	24305501150	6	2300	128	2
Spring adj. Assy ts73v - new	28131004150	6	1000	64	1
Manual screw bag (MSB)					
Cushion bc valve assy	28227101150	1	4800	237	1
Piston					
Damping piston assy ts91/92	24335501150	6	1260	100	1
Damping piston assy ts90 fork pusher	24500506150	5	1170	202	1
Opening piston assy ts90 fork pusher	24500806150	7	1170	163	1
Piston assy 7/8600	9800008200150	<u>9</u>	السيجي ت <u>ا</u>	145	1
Bearing UNIVE	RSITI TEKNI	KAL MAL/	AYSIA M	ELAKA	
Bearing housing assy 700/8600 sta	9800008210060	4	1300	77	1
Bearing housing assy ts83/73v bl-nanfang	28140604150	4	100	9	1
Bearing housing assy ts90 bc	24500402150	4	1100	63	1
Bearing housing assy ts90 (O-ring fx428 w)	24500403150	4	1100	63	1
Pinion bearing bottom assy ts93 ansi 1-5	24300402150	4	100	12	1
Pinion bearing top assy ts93 en5-7	24303001150	4	100	12	1

Bearing housing assy	9800008085020	4	600	46	1
8900					
Bearing housing assy	25300402150	4	800	47	1
gr400 (nanfang)					
Bearing housing assy	25300401150	4	200	24	1
gr500					
Bearing housing assy	24120401150	4	200	10	1
ts83/89					
Bearing housing assy	9800008200320	4	1300	77	1
7400/8600					
Bearing housing assy	24500401150	4	1100	63	1
ts90					
Bearing housing assy	24335401150	4	1200	68	1
ts92	1402				
Pinion bearing bottom	24306301150	4	2300	136	1
assy 2-5					
Pinion bearing top	24306301151	4	2300	128	1
assy 2-5	n				
Bearing housing assy	28140604150	zit-	1200	. 71	1
(bl) 2/1865 (ts73bl)	0	að		1	
Bearing housing assy	R 28140601150	(AL 4/IAL/	3200	EL/166A	1
ts83/73v bl					



Figure 1.1: Manufacturing Information of Various Models of sub-Assembly department



1.3 Objectives

The objectives of this project are as follows:

- To investigate the current process of each model in sub-assembly department based on the product family matrix
- To identify the model that need to carry out lean tools to reduce the cost, waste, waiting time, defect and product delivery speed.
- To develop the Value Stream Mapping (VSM) for selected model.

1.4 Scopes

The scope of this project are as follows:

- This study was carried out only at the sub-assembly department.
- Only product, model and activities that involved in sub-assembly department
- The analysis of the lean manufacturing tools was based in the current subassembly process.
- Only one model is used for lean manufacturing tools.

CHAPTER 2

LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Company background and Introduction

Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd is an enterprise based in Malaysia which its main office is in Melaka. The Enterprise currently operates in the field Door Closer, Aluminium Casted Body and Accessories. The company was founded on February 08, 1995. The latest annual report from the company reveals a 28.73% rise in net sales revenue in 2018. Its total assets declined by 9.8% over the same period. Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd has increased the net profit margin in 2018 by 0.21%.

This chapter discusses the literature of lean manufacturing, quality and its detailed principle. Moreover, this chapter provide a short review of the Lean tools and techniques such as Product Family Matrix, Time Observation Sheet, Standard Work Combination Sheet, KAIZEN and Value Stream Mapping (VSM).

Quality is very important especially in today's competitive market because it is the main key to ensure the development of product and service that can lead to success (Andrés-López et al 2015). To understand and involve the employees toward a successful goal is by set the quality system in clear direction for any organization to follow. The term "doing right at the first time" is very important especially in eliminating early stage waste. Boztinaztepe and Canan (2008) stated that defect on product sometimes can be detected before sending it to the customer but unfortunately this process is wasteful because it still needs to be fix. Although the defect on product is detected at early stages, still the company may losses their existing and

might also potential customers (Parihar et al., 2012). Quality management helps to improve quality planning, control, assurance and improvement within the organizations. These components helps to improve the quality of product and process which the will lead to the Total Quality Management (TQM). Al-Ibrahim (2014) found that TQM is a structured system as shown in Figure 2.1 and Figure 2.2 below which helps to integrate the business environment, improvement, development and maintenance while organizational culture is changing to meet internal and external satisfaction of customer and also suppliers.





Figure 2.2: Principle of TQM

(Source: Ibrahim, 2014).

The application of Lean is needed in order to make sure the quality of product and services is the best so that any problems, improvement and opportunities can be recognised (Jaafar et al, 2015). The definition of leans is manufacturing without waste. Lean has a positive feedback in industry with many successful cases that is recorded in the literature (Hines et al., 2008). There are seven types of waste which include overproduction, waiting, Inappropriate Processing, Transportation, Unnecessary Motion. Unnecessary Inventory and Rework. A.Rahman et al. (2013) found that many companies still struggling to become lean although they have wide resources and knowledge. The ultimate objective of lean manufacturing are to reduce any waste in human effort, inventory, market, stock and customer demand and ensure the product is efficient and economical (Singh et al., 2010). Lean manufacturing helps to control the value added and non-value added activities to the process .Lean manufacturing is mainly focus on efficiency to make sure that produce product or services is in the lowest cost as possible (Antony, 2011). There were five lean principle and approach that is recommended for project implementation in every organization which Specify Value, Identify the Value Stream, Flow, Pull and Perfection (Nikiforova and Bicevska, 2018).

2.1.1 Specify Value

Specify value means that any organization need to discover what is the value that is creates for customer in development or supply chain of project. Pearce et al. (2018) investigated that this first step is very crucial in lean thinking and need to be done with a conscious and precise define value when dealing with customer in terms of specific product capabilities and price offered. To achieve this, organization need to ignore any existing technologies or assets and need to rethink the firm's product line with dedicated and strong product teams. Therefore, it is really important to create a clear view to make sure they know what is really needed.

2.1.2 Identify the Value Stream

Value Stream helps to create a visualized activities and process in the organization. Discovering the entire values stream of each product and family is the second step in lean thinking. It set all the specific action and product that is necessary which bring through the three critical management of task in any business. Based on Rohani et al (2015), Figure 2.3 shown the example of Value Stream Mapping. The first one is problem solving task which started from concept to production launch through detailed engineering design. The second one is information management task which it takes from order taking to delivery through the detailed scheduling. The third one is physical information task which started from raw materials to the customer with finished product.

WALAYS/4

i.

There were three types of action that will occur in value stream which are:

- Lot of steps will be found to clearly create value.
- ii. Lot of steps will be found to create the non-value but it can't be avoided with the current production and technologies assets.
- iii. Lot of additional steps will be found to avoid immediately and create the non-value.



UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA

Figure 2.3: Example of VSM.

(Source: Rohani et al, 2015).

2.1.3 Flow

Flow is a step requires a complete rearrangement of the furniture and also to reduce the amount of variation for the output and process with the work instructions. Flow create a cellular design compare than a traditional straight line which helps to utilized people and communication much better (Pârv, L, 2017). This principle is stated that when you focus on the product and its needs, things become much better compare with the equipment or the organization. This is because all the activities are needed to order, provide and design a product that occur in continuous flow. However, the main problem is most people things that performing in batches is the best whereas rethink the task is more efficient and might permit continuous flow. Flow thinking is counterintuitive and the lean alternative is to redefine the department, firms and work of functions. This leads to a positive contribution to value creation and make the employees to have interest to make value flow because of the real needs at every point along the stream.

2.1.4 Pull

A pull system is simple and flexible method which balance and control the flow of the resources. The production and service is based on the customer demand compare that the forecasting. Blair (2010) found that pull can schedule, design and make what customer really need. The company or organization will let the customer to pull the product from them rather than pushing the products which is often unwanted to the customer. This indirectly will make the customer demand become more stable because they can get what they want straight away.

2.1.5 Perfection

Perfection is a continuous result improvement even in case of success because lean principle facilitates striving for perfection. There is no end to the process of reducing the time, effort, cost, mistake and space while offering a product nearly what customer wants (Pârv, 2017). The most important things in perfection is transparency and it is easy to find better ways to create value. Moreover, perfection helps employees to keep making improvement and this is a key feature for lean work and effort improvement.



2.2 Product Family Matrix

2.2.1 Concept of Product Family Matrix

For grouping products into groups, a Product Family Matrix may be used. It indicate which process steps are used by each product. Look for groupings of common steps of the method, then. The groupings are the families of items. According to Duggan (2018), the process phases are arranged with the last downstream processes by flow order. Downstream steps are phase steps that are closer to the client. For product families, by creating detours and arranging for the use of portable equipment, workflow layouts can be designed to accommodate minor variations in the workflow. Families with goods do not have to serve the same demand. Think in terms of processes exchanged, not markets shared. Table 2.1 below shows the example of Product Family Matrix (Chaple and Narkhede, 2017).

Table 2.1: Example of Product Family Matrix

		PRODUCT															
		P-1	P-2	P-3	P-4	P-5	P-6	P- 7	P-8	P-9	P-10	P-11	P-12	P-13	P-14	P-15	P-16
	W-1	V	\vee	V	V	V		V	V	V		N) ,	ويدادونه	, w	2	V	
	W-2	V	√	√	V		V	V	V	V			20	0	- a	-	
	≻ , W-3	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V			1				
	mW-4																
	₹W-5	NIV	EF	(SI		TE	KN	IK	AL		AL	AYS	FIA.	ME	LA	KA.	√
	₩-6																V
	W-7										V	V	√	V	V		V
	₿w-8										V	V	V	V	V		
	00W-9										V	V	V	V	V		
	W-10										V	V	V	√	√		
	S-1				V	√	V	V	V		√	V	V	V		V	
	⊢ S-2				V	√	V	√	V		√	V	√	V		√	
	₹ S-3				V	V	V	V	V		V	V	V	V		V	
	²² S-4	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V		V	√	V	V		V	
	R-1	V	V	V		V	V	V	V							V	
6	[[∨] R-2					V	V	V	V							V	
Ĥ	- R-3	V	V	V	V	V	V	V									
Б	₩ R-4								V	V				√	√	√	V
E E	🗄 R-5								√	V				√	√	√	V
	🖗 R-6	V	V	√	V	V	V	V	V	V	√	V	V	√	√	V	V
	m R-7	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	√	V	√	√	√	V	
	🖓 R-8	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	√	√	V	V
	R-9	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	√		√	V
	A-1																V
	A-2	√	V	V													
	A-3	√	V	V													
	≻ A-4				V	V	V	V	V	V	V	√	V	V	V	√	
	m A-5				V	V	V	V	V	V	V	√	V	V	V	√	
	≥ A-6																V
	2 A-7																V
	₹ A-8																V
	A-9	V	V	V	V	V											
	A-10						V	V	V	V	V	V	V	√	V	V	
	A-11	V	V	V		V	V	V		V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V

2.2.2 Creating Product Family Matrix

It is important to take some time up front in order to define the product family for research and develop in order to achieve full benefits from the value stream mapping efforts (Bärring et al, 2017). The fundamental principle is higher volume goods is prioritized for enhancement. There are 2 steps for doing the product family matrix which are:

- 1. Collect data on production performance, both in delivered units and sales figures. The data is recommended to collect between 6 to 12 months.
- 2. In an attempt to define where to concentrate first, construct a Pareto map with this information for example that has highest volume products.



inconclusive is the product routing matrix. The product routing matrix supports how the process passes through each product family. The product can be grouped together and one set of value stream maps covering both products can be generated. The product routing matrix of the metal fabrication process is shown in Table 2.2 below (Rasi et al, 2014). The Table shows the eight goods and the procedures that each object requires to go through. Three products, for example; Hook ABC Suspension LV, ST LTG Bracket (Short Arm), and ST LTG Long Bracket (Long Arm) have passed through comparable processing steps and standard equipment.

|--|

Qty.	PROCESS	Cutting	Stamping	Rolling	Threading	Welding	Platting	Assembly	Resupply
77000	Hook ABC Suspension LV	Х	Х		Х		Х	Х	
52000	Bolt & Nut GVD HRH Dia 5/8" x 7"								Х
42000	Band Universal 7.5m & 9m		X				X	х	
32000	ST LTG Long Bracket (Long Arm)	х	х	х		х	х		
31000	Stay Rod 2.5m x 19mm	X			Х		Х	Х	
29500	Bow With Thimble	X	х				X	X	
29000	Triangular Bracket For HV ABC		х				X	х	
26500	STLTG Bracket (Short Arm)	х	X	X		Х	X		

2.3 Time Observation Sheet

A basic and often-used tool for lean practitioners is the time observation sheet which also referred as a process study form. The Time Observation Sheet is used to observe the cycle times of the regular work measures (Starovoytova, 2017). The type serves several purposes in combination with a stop watch, including:

- Facilitating direct process observation such as one form per operator.
- Requiring the identification of the smallest measurable part tasks, operator and system time separation.
- Task times for recording components which may sometimes be grouped, if appropriate.
- Encouraging multi-cycle observation to help assess the lowest repeatable cycle times.
- Highlighting the difference in cycle time with the same and different operators and giving insight into the variability causes.

UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA

- Enabling waste to be detected.
- Facilitating the growth of standard work.

According to Brown (2020), time observations are a unique way of recording an entire process in a manner that is thorough and objective, from setup to cleanup. On the other hand, time studies essentially document the amount of time needed for such processes to be completed. Additionally, within each element, time studies start and stop, while a time observation records the entire process. Table 2.3 shows the example of Time Observation Sheet.

				Ti	ime	Ob	ser	vati	on :	She	et		
Project	t Area / Machine											Date	
NO.	Component Task	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	Component Task time	Points Observed
1													
2													
3	ALA	157	4										
4				ter.									
5				1 S								-	
6					-							-	
7	—— <u>—</u> —												
8	E												
9	2		-						2				
11	ALMO												
12													
10	يا ملاك	-	J.	0 .	ļ		2				w	÷.	اوينوم
13												-	
14		\$IT	1	E	KI	III	(A	L	M	AL	A	ISIA	MELAKA

 Table 2.3: Example of Time Observation Sheet

2.4 Standard Work Combination Sheet

The number of separate operations that each worker should be assigned must be determined after deciding the manual process time and cycle time for each operation. At the same time, it is important to establish the order of actions that each worker must perform within a given cycle time. Lu et al (2014) stated that a Standard Work Combination Sheet is a common work method that is based on the type of time observation and defines the sequence in which machines are visited and the relationship between operators or machines.

As a basis for allocating the function of the time observation form, Standard Work Combination Sheet uses takt time. In addition, this step visually differentiates between operator and machine operation. It also reveals issues related to the operator and computer combination. During a work cycle, the traditional work combination table schedules the work of one operator. It is therefore primarily useful for manual cyclic work that repeats almost identically for each component generated. All assembly procedures are prime examples but other manual methods which are mainly cyclic may also be included.

2.4.1 TAKT Time

UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA

The rate of production in harmony with the pulse of customer orders is TAKT Time. 'TAKT' is the German term for a musical beat or rhythm (Pereira et al, 2016). As the metronome holds the beat for music, working to TAKT time maintains the beat for consumer demand. This results in a constant and smooth flow of products. TAKT time is not measured or observed but determined by the performance required as the quotient of the available time. The management of TAKT time output makes it possible to detect any irregular condition and respond accordingly. There are many concepts to define and measure the output rate to understand total cycle time, activity cycle time, operator cycle time, machine cycle time, end-of-line rate, TAKT time and pitch. The total cycle time is the time from when the raw material enters a plant to the shipping of a finished product.
2.4.2 Creating Standard Work Combination Sheet

Different ways of research carry together the collected data. For deciding whether there is any substantial amount of waste in the delays between separate process phases, the Combination Sheet can be very useful. In order to solve such problems, it can also provide a clear example of the kind of direction the organization wants to operate in.

The time needed for human movement, as well as machine movement, all based on TAKT time are the most significant points reported in the Combination Sheet. The organization will calculate just how much an individual worker is responsible for with the correct use of a Combination Sheet and if an employee is overburdened by their current duties, it will become more apparent.

It may also demonstrate whether a specific employee might be best used. It's not unusual for a business to not realize that one of its staff is substantially underutilized, spending even less time doing real work than the suspect. Also, in a smaller company with more supervision, it's always possible for these concerns to slip through the cracks.

But when everything is properly registered and accounted for, you will have all the data right in front of you using all the appropriate resources to build a structured working environment. Table 2.4 below shows the example of Standard Work Combination Sheet (Puvanasvaran, 2018).





2.4.8 KAIZEN

KAIZEN is basically means "improvement" and its policy calls for relentless efforts to boost involving everyone in the organization, including administrators and staff. KAIZEN is a Japanese word that means constant gradual, orderly and improvement. The KAIZEN business strategy includes everybody in an organization working together to achieve improvements without large investments in capital (Ravee, 2014). KAIZEN philosophy is continuous improvement oriented towards the reduction of waste in all processes and organizational methods, beginning with the GEMBA. The principle of KAIZEN are human resources is the most important asset to the company. Next, the processes must develop by incremental development rather than drastic reform. Lastly, the progress shall be based on statistical or quantitative method efficiency evaluations.

2.4.8.1 KAIZEN key features

- 1) Improvements are based on many, minor changes rather than the radical changes that could result from the Research and Evolution.
- 2) As the ideas come from the workers themselves, they are less likely to be radically different and therefor it is easier to deploy.
- Small improvements are less likely to require significant capital investment than major changes to the processes.
- The ideas originate from the skills of the local workers and not from the use of R&D, consultants or equipment that may be really costly.
- 5) All workers should be actively searching for ways to enhance their own results.
- 6) It helps encourage employees to take ownership of their work and can help strengthen the team's work and enhancing workplace motivation.

2.4.8.2 KAIZEN strategy

The Kaizen approach involves other approaches and techniques essential for the effective implementation of the strategy in an organization (Markulik, 2016). Kaizen Management System (KMS) creates a wholesome system by integrating both methods and tools. It is a system for an organization's long-term growth. All workers and their creativity are included in the key tools, setting all procedures, zero tolerance to all errors and faults, productive use of equipment and technology, use of lean production systems and Quality Cost Delivery (QCD) which is shown in Figure 2.4 below (Cierna et al, 2016). It has four fundamental pillars which are Total Flow Management (TFM), Total Productive Maintenance (TPM), Total Quality Management (TQM), Total Service Management (TSM) and its distinct thinking is related to Total Change Management (TCM). The key objective of KMS is to continuously boost the supply of materials and subcontracts to meet the needs of customers (Nenadal, 2015).



Figure 2.4: Kaizen Management System

(Source: Cierna et al, 2016).

2.4.8.3 Toyota Production System

Paraschivescu et al (2015) claims that the accomplishments of Toyota Company known as Toyota Production System can be found in the best practices in the field of Kaizen theory. The Toyota Production System became the foundation for Lean Manufacturing, and since the early 1990s, Six Sigma philosophies have been prevalent in the industry. The Toyota Production System contains 14 management principles which can be correlated into 4 keys categories of Philosophy, Process, People and Partners and Problem solving as shown in Figure 2.5 below.



Figure 2.5: 4 Keys Categories of Toyota Production System

(Source: Paraschivescu et al, 2015)

2.4.8.4 Example of KAIZEN analysis tools

A Successful KAIZEN activity has three important factors. First of all, all the employees at Gemba which are the workers at the Production site must grasp the principle of KAIZEN and be optimistic and enthusiastic about the benefits from practicing KAIZEN activity vigorously. Secondly, top management needs to understand, promote and learn how to better assess the outcome of the KAIZEN efforts of the employees which only the introduction of KAIZEN activities at the workplace can lead to a false sense of the achievement, without quantifiable results. Thirdly, based on Shettar et al. (2015), everyone involves must understand and practice KAIZEN techniques on a daily basis and also need to understand the spirit and philosophy that underlies it. The concept of KAIZEN is composed of four elements which are quality, effort, willingness to improve and communication. Figure 2.6 below shown the example of KAIZEN.



Figure 2.6: Example of KAIZEN

(Source: Shettar et al., 2015).

2.4.9 Value Stream Mapping (VSM)

According to Pambhar and Awasthi (2017), Value Stream Mapping (VSM) can be a business planning and communication tool to lead the change in process. The goals and objectives of VSM are to discover and observe the material flow from raw material to final customer in real time. VSM also helps visualize any losses in the process by using symbols as the representation of the process visually and clearly (Forno et al., 2014).

By creating VSM, it allow company to document current inventory levels, cycle times and production lead time. This helps to identify the ration of any value added to the total lead time of the service or product and indirectly creating a vision for ideal value flow. This process of documenting relationship is very important in VSM. This is very different with other mapping techniques which has only map product flow (Muniyappa and Prasad, 2014).

According to Yuvamitra et al. (2017), VSM is an essential tools for these reasons:

- The information of the material flow in VSM helps to visualize the multiple process including the overall manufacturing material flow instead of single operation.
- Any problem areas, waste and source of waste also can be identified by using VSM.VERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA
- 3) VSM is served as a blueprint for Lean application.
- 4) It shows the linkage or relationship of the material and information flow.
- 5) VSM can be also been use as quantitative or qualitative tools and it ties the Lean techniques and concept together.

2.4.9.1 Value Stream Mapping analysis tools

Construction of VSM requires three steps which are current, future and next future state as shown in Figure 2.7, 2.8 and 2.9 below. Akçagün (2012) investigated that improvement efforts may be based on those by drawing and examining the current state map areas which will give process flow the greatest benefit. In addition to priority incremental improvements, VSM can be used as a Continuous Strategic tool for change, by building an optimistic future state focused on the principles of Lean Manufacturing. The Future state map is the basis for a long-term improvement plan that can be implemented within an organization and their supply chain. Production value is defined as a capability offered to a customer of the highest performance, on time and quality at a fair price (Xia and Sun, 2013).



Figure 2.7: VSM Steps

(Source: Jeong et al, 2016).





Figure 2.9: Future state VSM.

(Source: Rajule et al, 2018)

2.4.9.2 Value Stream Mapping Symbols

Dushyan et al (2015) investigated that the VSM symbols and terminologies for present and future preparations of value stream mapping is shown in Figure 2.10 below.

Symbol	Description
Customer/Supplier	Used to show customers, suppliers and outside manufacturing process
Process Dedicated Process	This icon is a process, operation, machine or department, through which material flows.
Data Box	Which carries customers, department and manufacturing process
	This shows inventory between two process
Shipments	This icon represents movement of raw materials from suppliers to the Receiving docks of the factory. or the customers
	This shows inventory between two process
Push Arrow	This icon represents the "purpting" of material from one process to the next process.
Material Pull	Pull of materials from Supermarkets.
External Shipment	Shipments from suppliers or to customers using external transport.
Manual Info	A straight, thin arrow shows general flow of information from memos, reports, or conversation.
Electronic Info	This wiggle arrow represents electronic flow such as electronic data interchange (EDI), the internet, intranets, LANs, WANs
Froduction Kanban	This icon triggers production of a pre-defined number of parts: it signals a supplying process to provide parts to a downstream process.
	This icon represents a card or device that instructs a material handler to transfer parts from a supermarket to the receiving process.
jSkanhan	Esignals a changeover and production of a predepartment batch size of the part noted on the Kanban ELAKA
ACTO Go See	Gathering of information through visual means.
Kaizen Burst	These icons are used to highlight improvement needs and plan kaizen workshops at specific processes that are critical to achieving the FSVSM
Operator	This icon represents an operator. It shows the number of operators required to process the VSM family at a particular workstation.
	The timeline shows value added times (Cycle Times) and non-value added (wait) times. Use this to calculate Lead Time and Total Cycle Time.
Lerbal Information	This icon represents verbal or personal information flow.
۲	This icon represents a pull system that gives instruction to subassembly processes to produce a predetermined type and quantity of product
	This icon is a tool to batch kanbans in order to level the production volume and mix over a period of time
Load Leveling	Scheduling using MRP/ERP or other centralized systems.
MRP/ERP	unannanning aannig en er en een an aannal taltillällikkist äjällikista.

Figure 2.10: VSM symbols.

(Source: Dushyan et al., 2015).

CHAPTER 3

METHODOLOGY

This chapter describes the method applied in this project. The methodology implemented was based on previous research as highlight in the literature review.



The methodology describes the process involved in gathering the information including the process flow of this study and the data collection in sub-assembly process area at Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd. Methodology is the specific procedures used to identify and analyse the information in preparation for further lean manufacturing techniques. Methodology helps in order to achieve the objectives of the project stated.

3.2 Flow chart

3.1

A process flowchart is a business process which represent the graphical view of overall procedure involved in this study. It is used to get the detailed and top-down view on the process

flow, procedure and event outcomes. The flow chart shown in Figure 3.1 below describes the whole view of the development of lean manufacturing approach in this study.



Figure 3.1: Flow chart of the whole view on the development of lean manufacturing for research in PSM 1 and PSM 2.

3.2.1 Identification of problem statement

A problem statement is a concise explanation of a problem to be dealt with or a condition to be built upon. Identifying the problem statement requires listing the problem statement, deciding the goal of the project and describing the nature of the project.

3.2.2 Literature review

Literature review consist of scholarly paper which provide the current knowledge, analytic observations, reviewing the theoretical and also methodological that contributes to a specific field or topic of the project. The literature review will identify, determine and provide the historical analysis of literature research and theory. The literature review definitely important especially on the subject of the project because it can give special emphasis on the topic of the project. The summary of the research is drawn up and focus mainly on productivity improvement, lean manufacturing tool and VSM.

اونيۈم سيتي تيڪنيڪل مليسيا ملاك UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA

3.2.3 Data collection

The process of collecting the data include the compilation of the qualitative and quantitative of information on variables which the main target is analysing the outcomes and gaining the actionable insights. The collected data in this project are more on quantitative research because most of the data can be counted, measured and also expressed using numbers. Table 3.1 below manufacturing information of various models of sub-asssembly department for the past 9 months and the graph of station name/model run with the number of process. This method can help to achieve the first objective of this project which is investigation of the current process for each model in sub-assembly department.

QUOTA GROSS MAN PER WEIGHT **STATION NAME / PROCESS MATERIAL POWER** SHIFT (KG) **MODEL RUN** Adjustment Spring Screw (SAS) Spring adj. Screw assy 5 1000 1 28140903150 64 ts73v bl Spring adj. Screw assy 28140901150 5 1600 93 1 ts83 bl Spring adj. Screw assy 28140904150 1600 93 1 5 WALAYS/4 ts83 en 2-5 bl 24336402150 2 Spring adj. Screw assy 1000 64 6 ts92-new Spring adj. Screw assy 24305501150 128 2 6 2300 ts93 en2-5 Spring adj. Assy ts73v 28131004150 1000 6 64 1 'que g - new 5: screw bag Manual RSITI TEKNIKAL MAL/ AYSIA MELAKA (MSB) Cushion bc valve assy 28227101150 237 1 1 4800 Piston Damping piston assy 24335501150 100 1 6 1260 ts91/92 Damping piston assy 5 1170 1 24500506150 202 ts90 fork pusher 7 Opening piston assy 24500806150 1170 163 1 ts90 fork pusher

Table 3.1: Manufacturing Information of Various Models of Sub-Assembly department(Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd; March 6, 2020).

9

1650

145

1

9800008200150

Piston assy 7/8600

Bearing

700/8000 sta 28140604150 4 100 9 1 Bearing housing assy 24500402150 4 1100 63 1 s83/73v bl-nanfang 24500402150 4 1100 63 1 Bearing housing assy 24500402150 4 1100 63 1 s90 bc 1 63 1 1 63 1 Bearing housing assy 24500402150 4 100 63 1 s90 (O-ring fx428 w) 24300402150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing bottom 24300402150 4 100 12 1 assy ts93 ansi 1-5 24303001150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing top 24303001150 4 600 46 1 8900 25300402150 4 800 47 1 gr400 (nanfang) 25300401150 4 200 24 1 gr500 24120401150 4 200 10 1 1 Bearing housing assy 24120401150 <t< th=""></t<>
Bearing housing assy 28140604150 4 100 9 1 st83/73v bl-nanfang 24500402150 4 1100 63 1 Bearing housing assy 24500402150 4 1100 63 1 ts90 bc 1 63 1 63 1 Bearing housing assy 24500402150 4 1100 63 1 ts90 bc 24300402150 4 100 12 1 assy ts93 ansi 1-5 24300402150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing top 24303001150 4 100 12 1 assy ts93 en5-7 24500402150 4 600 46 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008085020 4 600 46 1 8900 25300402150 4 800 47 1 gr400 (nanfang) 25300402150 4 200 24 1 gr500 4 200 10 1 1 st83/89 24120401150 4 200 10 1
ts83/73v bl-nanfang 24500402150 4 1100 63 1 Bearing housing assy 24500403150 4 1100 63 1 Bearing housing assy 24500403150 4 1100 63 1 Bearing housing assy 24500402150 4 100 63 1 ts90 (O-ring fx428 w) 24300402150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing bottom 24300402150 4 100 12 1 assy ts93 ansi 1-5 24303001150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing top 24303001150 4 600 46 1 8900 9800008085020 4 600 46 1 8900 9800008085020 4 800 47 1 gr400 (nanfang) 25300401150 4 200 24 1 gr500 4 200 10 1 1 s83/89 24120401150 4 200 10 1 s83/89 9800008200320 4 1300 77.
Bearing housing assy 24500402150 4 1100 63 1 searing housing assy 24500403150 4 1100 63 1 Bearing housing assy 24500403150 4 1100 63 1 ts90 (O-ring fx428 w) 24300402150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing bottom 24300402150 4 100 12 1 assy ts93 ansi 1-5 24303001150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing top 24303001150 4 100 12 1 assy ts93 en5-7 2800008085020 4 600 46 1 Bearing housing assy 28300402150 4 800 47 1 gr400 (nanfang) 25300401150 4 200 24 1 Bearing housing assy 24120401150 4 200 10 1 ts83/89 24120401150 4 200 10 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008200320 4 4 100 10 ts83/89 9800008200320
ts90 bc Image: second seco
Bearing housing assy 24500403150 4 1100 63 1 ts90 (O-ring fx428 w) 24300402150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing bottom 24300402150 4 100 12 1 assy ts93 ansi 1-5 24303001150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing top 24303001150 4 100 12 1 assy ts93 en5-7 2800008085020 4 600 46 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008085020 4 800 47 1 gr400 (nanfang) 25300402150 4 800 47 1 Bearing housing assy 25300401150 4 200 24 1 gr500 24120401150 4 200 10 1 ts83/89 24120401150 4 1300 77 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008200320 4 1300 77 1 7400/8600 24500401150 4 1100 63 1
ts90 (O-ring fx428 w) 24300402150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing bottom 24300402150 4 100 12 1 assy ts93 ansi 1-5 24303001150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing top 24303001150 4 100 12 1 assy ts93 en5-7 24303001150 4 600 46 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008085020 4 600 46 1 8900 25300402150 4 800 47 1 gr400 (nanfang) 25300402150 4 200 24 1 gr500 25300401150 4 200 24 1 Bearing housing assy 24120401150 4 200 10 1 ts83/89 24120401150 4 200 10 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008200320 4 1300 77 1 7400/8600 4 1100 63 1
Pinion bearing bottom assy ts93 ansi 1-5 24300402150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing top assy ts93 en5-7 24303001150 4 100 12 1 Bearing housing assy 980008085020 4 600 46 1 Bearing housing assy gr400 (nanfang) 25300402150 4 800 47 1 Bearing housing assy gr500 25300401150 4 200 24 1 Bearing housing assy gr500 24120401150 4 200 10 1 Bearing housing assy gr500 24120401150 4 200 10 1 Bearing housing assy gr500 24120401150 4 1300 77 1 Bearing housing assy gr500 24120401150 4 1300 77 1 Bearing housing assy gr600 24120401150 4 1300 77 1 Bearing housing assy gr600 24500401150 4 1100 63 1
assy ts93 ansi 1-5 24303001150 4 100 12 1 Pinion bearing top assy ts93 en5-7 24303001150 4 100 12 1 Bearing housing assy p800008085020 4 600 46 1 8900 25300402150 4 800 47 1 gr400 (nanfang) 25300402150 4 200 24 1 gr500 25300401150 4 200 24 1 gr500 24120401150 4 200 10 1 ts83/89 24120401150 4 200 10 1 Bearing housing assy p800008200320 4 1300 77 1 7400/8600 24500401150 4 1100 63 1
Pinion bearing top 24303001150 4 100 12 1 assy ts93 en5-7 2800008085020 4 600 46 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008085020 4 600 46 1 8900 25300402150 4 800 47 1 gr400 (nanfang) 25300402150 4 200 24 1 gr500 25300401150 4 200 24 1 Bearing housing assy 24120401150 4 200 10 1 ts83/89 9800008200320 4 1300 77 1 7400/8600 24500401150 4 1100 63 1
assy ts93 en5-7 9800008085020 4 600 46 1 Bearing housing assy gr400 (nanfang) 25300402150 4 800 47 1 Bearing housing assy gr500 25300402150 4 200 24 1 Bearing housing assy gr500 25300401150 4 200 24 1 Bearing housing assy gr500 24120401150 4 200 10 1 Bearing housing assy fts83/89 24120401150 4 1300 77 1 Bearing housing assy fts83/89 9800008200320 4 1300 63 1
Bearing housing assy 9800008085020 4 600 46 1 8900 800 47 1 Bearing housing assy 25300402150 4 800 47 1 gr400 (nanfang) 25300402150 4 200 24 1 Bearing housing assy 25300401150 4 200 24 1 gr500 24120401150 4 200 10 1 ts83/89 24120401150 4 200 10 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008200320 4 1300 77A 1 7400/8600 24500401150 4 1100 63 1
8900 25300402150 4 800 47 1 Bearing housing assy gradowing assy gradowing housing assy gradowing assy gradowing housing assy gradowing assy gradowing assy gradowing housing assy gradowing housing assy gradowing assy gradowing housing housing assy gradowing housing housing assy gradowing housing houbing houbing housing housing housing housing houbing
Bearing housing assy 25300402150 4 800 47 1 gr400 (nanfang) 4 200 24 1 Bearing housing assy 25300401150 4 200 24 1 gr500 4 200 10 1 1 Bearing housing assy 24120401150 4 200 10 1 ts83/89 5 5 4 1300 77A 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008200320 4 1100 63 1 7400/8600 24500401150 4 1100 63 1
gr400 (nanfang) 25300401150 4 200 24 1 gr500 24120401150 4 200 10 1 Bearing housing assy 24120401150 4 200 10 1 ts83/89 2800008200320 4 1300 77 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008200320 4 1100 63 1
Bearing housing assy 25300401150 4 200 24 1 gr500 24120401150 4 200 10 1 Bearing housing assy 24120401150 4 200 10 1 ts83/89 2800008200320 4 1300 177 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008200320 4 1100 63 1
gr500 24120401150 4 200 10 1 Bearing housing assy 24120401150 4 200 10 1 ts83/89 2800008200320 4 1300 777 1 Bearing housing assy 9800008200320 4 1300 777 1 7400/8600 24500401150 4 1100 63 1
Bearing housing assy 24120401150 4 200 10 1 ts83/89 Bearing housing assy 9800008200320 AL 4 1300 EL 77 A 1 7400/8600 24500401150 4 1100 63 1
ts83/89 Bearing housing assy 9800008200320 AL 4 AL Y 1300 M ELA77 A 1 7400/8600 24500401150 4 1100 63 1
Bearing housing assy 9800008200320 AL 4 AL Y 1300 ELA77.A 1 7400/8600
7400/8600 4 1100 63 1
Bearing housing assy 24500401150 4 1100 63 1
Doming housing ussy 27500701150 7 1100 05 1
ts90
Bearing housing assy 24335401150 4 1200 68 1
ts92
Pinion bearing bottom 24306301150 4 2300 136 1
assy 2-5
Pinion bearing top 24306301151 4 2300 128 1
assy 2-5
Bearing housing assy 28140604150 4 1200 71 1
(bl) 2/1865 (ts73bl)

Bearing housing assy	28140601150	4	3200	166	1
ts83/73v bl					



3.2.4 Data analysis

After collecting the data from the site visit, the data need to be clean and transform to discover any useful information. For VSM, only one model has been chosen based on its process, quota per shift, gross weight and man power. Based on Figure 3.2 below, the chosen product for VSM implementation is Piston assy 7/8600 because it has highest process which is 9. It also has high quota per shift compare with other model which is 1650. Therefore, VSM is needed for the model Piston assy 7/8600. This method can helps to achieve the second objectives of this project which is the identification of the model that need to carry out lean tools to reduce the cost, waste, waiting time, defect and product delivery speed.



Figure 3.2: Manufacturing Information of Various Models of sub-Assembly department (Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd; March 6, 2020).

3.2.5 Identify the product family matrix

VSM only focus fewer part, service, transaction or process. Product family derived from a common or similar product platform, process and machine. It also have similar physical characteristics and share customer segment, pricing, distribution and also promotional campaigns. The reason why product family matrix is crucial in lean technique is because it can segment the product/models into the right product/model families. It also maximize the lean flow and manage the total demand for the entire product family. Table 3.2, 3.3, 3.4 and 3.5 below shown the product family matrix for SAS, Piston and Bearing. This method can helps to achieve the third objectives of this project which is to validate the data for product family matrix for the model.



Table 3.2: Product family matrix for Spring Adjustment Screw (SAS).

Spr	ino				PROCH	ESSING ST	EPS AND	MACHINE	S		
Spi	ing	Insert	Insert O-	Place on	Place	Drill	Place	Place disc	Place	Activate	Place
Adjus	tment	pressure	ring	the jig	adjustment	screw	retainer	washer	precision	gripper	complete
Screw	(SAS)	disc			screw				tip		model in box
	SAS ts73v bl	х	x		х		x	х			х
	SAS ts83 bl	х	x		х		x	x			х
MODEL	SAS ts83 en 2-5 bl	х	x		х		x	X			Х
	SAS ts92 – new	X	X	X	X			x	X	X	X
	SAS ts93 en2-5	x	Х	x	X				X		X
	SAS ts73v - new	x	-		X		X	x			X
		To.			=						

(Source: Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd).

Table 3.3: Product family matrix for Piston.

(Source: Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd).

		UNIV	ERS	T ITI	EKI	IKA	LM/	ALA'	YSIA	ME	LAK/	1	
						PROCES	SING STH	EPS AND N	ACHINE	8			
		Arrange	Place	Place	insert bolt	Activate	Knock	Air blow	Load on	Load on	Load on	Crimp	Arrange
Piston	ton	Piston	PLV	roller		hydraulic	PLV	PLV	clamping	sleeve	crimping	piston	piston in
						cylinder			sleeve	punch	station		box.
	_					press				machine			
	Damping												
	piston assy	Х		X	х						X	х	Х
	ts91/92												
	Damping												
	piston assy	x		x						x			x
	ts90 fork									Α			Α
MODEL	pusher												
	Opening												
	piston assy	x		x	x				x	x			x
	ts90 fork												~
	pusher												
	Piston assy	x	x			x	x	x					x
	7/8600	Α	Λ			Λ	Λ						А

Table 3.4: Product family matrix for Bearing.

	E2
Pick pinion Insert and Place needle Place t	he Blow and
Bearing bearing press O-Ring bearing top bearing	ig Insert O-Ring
first housing u	ınder last
Press made	chine
700/8600 STA X	
	X
TS83/73V BL-	V
NANFANG X X X	X
TS90 BC	
TS90 (O-ring	
FX428 W) X X X X X	
TS93 ANSI 1-5	
	X
TS93 EN5-7	V
8900 X X X	x
	A
GR400 X X X	X
(NANFANG)	
MODEL GR500 X X X X	x
T622/00	
	x
7400/8600	3.3
	X
UNIVERSONT TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA ME	LAKA
TS92 X X X X	
BOTTOM X X X X	
ASSY 2-5	
TOP ASSY 2-5 X X X X X	
(DL) 2/1965	
(BL) 2/1805 X X X X X	
(TS73BL)	

(Source: Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd).

Noted: Last process is transfer the finished part to the box

Table 3.5: The detail process of station name/model run

(Source: Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd).

5	STATION			
	NAME /		PROCESS	PRODUCT FIGURE
	MODEL			
	RUN			
Sp	ring			
Ad	ljustment			
Sc	rew (SAS)			
•	Spring adj.	1)	Left hand pick pressure disc and right	
	Screw assy		hand pick O-ring and hold it on right	- S
	ts73v bl		hand.	A PAR
•	Spring adj.	2)	Left hand pick the adjustment screw and	
	Screw assy	Y	insert into pressure disc. Right hand pick	Figure 3.3: SAS ts/3v bl
	ts83 bl		O-ring and insert into the adjustment	
•	Spring adj.	2	screw.	
	Screw assy	3)	Place the part downward onto the fixture	
	ts83 en 2-5	N	and right hand pick one retainer and	Example 2.4. $C \wedge C$ to 22 hl
	bl	יע	place it on the fixture and follow by	Figure 3.4: SAS 1885 01
	U	4)	pressing the retainer with a lever. Place the part in the hole facing upwards	
			and right hand pick two disc washer and	
			follow by O-ring.	Figure 3.5: SAS ts83 en 2-
		5)	Place the complete spring adjustment	5 bl
			screw in the box.	
•	Spring adj.	1)	Right hand take pressure disc and left	and the second second
	Screw assy		hand take adjustment screw. Insert	
	ts92 - new		pressure disc on the adjustment screw	
			and place in on the jig.	
		2)	Pick one washer and place it into the	
			adjustment screw. Pick precision tip with	
			left hand and take an O-ring with right	Figure 3.0 : SAS ts92 –
				new

		hand. Place the precision tip and press	
		the O-ring into the O-ring groove. Place	
		the finished part into the box. Pick all at	
		the same time.	
	3)	Right hand pick the finished part, check	
		for the O-ring before load it on the	
		fixture. Left hand pull the lever to	
		activate the gripper to lock the pressure	
		disc.	
	4)	Right hand pick end cap and left hand	
		pick O-ring. Place O-ring into the end	
		cap.	
	5)	After the torque test is done and cylinder	
	2	is going up unlock the gripper with left	
(in the second sec	1	hand. Right hand pick finished part from	
E C		fixture and press the finished part into	
	à.	the end cap.	
	6)	Place the final part in the box.	
Spring adj.	1)	Left hand take pressure disc and right	
Screw assy		hand take adjustment screw. Insert	
ts93 en2-5	NI	pressure disc on the adjustment screw	A MELAKA HA
		and place it on the jig.	
	2)	Pick two washers and place it into the	
		adjustment screw. Pick precision tip with	Figure 3. <i>1</i> : SAS ts93 en2-
		left hand and take an O-ring with right	5
		hand. Place the precision tip and press	
		the O-ring into the O-ring groove. Place	
		the finished part into the box.	
	3)	Pick the finished part with right hand and	
		place it into fixture of the torque test.	
		Press the green button to start the torque	
		test.	

	4)	Left hand pick end cap and right hand	
		pick O-ring.	
	5)	Place O-ring into the end cap. Right hand	
		pick finished part from fixture and press	
		the finished part into the end cap.	
Spring adj.	1)	Pick 12 pcs pressure disc with both hand	4
Assy ts73v -		and placed it onto dummy.	The ma
new	2)	Insert SAS Ts73 screw at the centre of	
		pressure disc.	
	3)	RH drill the screw into pressure disc for	
		5mm (±1.0mm) while LH hold copper	Figure 3.8: SAS ts/3V -
		brush to remove remaining stains at the	new
		part.	
	4)	Pick 1 pcs part at fixture and place O-	
5	7	ring Ø8x1.5 follow by inserting washer	
TEK		then used RH press the retaining ring in	
1	à	with a lever.	
	5)	Pick and insert O-ring Ø8.5x2 using RH.	
	6)	Lastly, place the completed part into the	
	ענ	ي بيڪييڪل مليسيا م	اويور س
Manual screw	NI	/ERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSI	AMELAKA
bag (MSB)			
Cushion bc	1)	Use both hand to count the screws and	
valve assy		drop into the chute.	
			Figure 3.9: Cushion bc
			valve assy

Piston		
Damping	1) Pick & Arrange Piston On Work Station.	
piston assy	2) Pick & place roller into piston.	
ts91/92	3) Pick & insert bolt between roller and	and the second
	piston.	. 2845
	4) Load piston on crimping station.	ST AL
	5) Crimp piston by push 2 button.	
	6) Pick & arrange piston assy inside nylon	Figure 3.10: Damping
	box.	piston assy ts91/92
Damping	1) Pick & Arrange Piston On Work Station.	
piston assy	2) Pick & place roller into piston.	
ts90 fork	3) Lift piston guide, pick & insert piston	
pusher	inside sleeve punch machine.	
Ш b=	4) Pick & insert roller & sleeve pins inside	Figure 3.11: Damping
	machine. Lift piston guide & take out	niston assy ts90 fork
	piston.	nusher
5	5) Pick & arrange piston assy inside nylon	
-	box.	
Opening piston	1) Pick & Arrange Piston On Work Station.	A MELAKA
assy ts90 fork	2) Pick & place roller into piston.	
pusher	3) Pick & insert bolt between roller and	01 0 10
	piston.	
	4) Push bolt with tools.	
	5) Pick & insert clamping sleeve into	
	piston.	1000.00
	6) Punch clamping sleeve with hammer &	Figure 3.12: Opening
	punching tools.	piston assy ts90 fork
	7) Pick & arrange piston assy inside nylon	pusher
	box.	

 7/8600 2) Pick & arrange PLV at piston hole. 3) Knock slightly PLV to piston. 4) Arrange piston & press PLV inside piston by using two hand button to activate hydraulic cylinder press (2 piston each). 5) Pick & arrange PLV at other piston hole. 6) Knock slightly PLV to piston. 	sy
 3) Knock slightly PLV to piston. 4) Arrange piston & press PLV inside piston by using two hand button to activate hydraulic cylinder press (2 piston each). 5) Pick & arrange PLV at other piston hole. 6) Knock slightly PLV to piston. 	sy
 4) Arrange piston & press PLV inside piston by using two hand button to activate hydraulic cylinder press (2 piston each). 5) Pick & arrange PLV at other piston hole. 6) Knock slightly PLV to piston. 	ssy
 piston by using two hand button to activate hydraulic cylinder press (2 piston each). 5) Pick & arrange PLV at other piston hole. 6) Knock slightly PLV to piston. 	ssy
 activate hydraulic cylinder press (2 piston each). 5) Pick & arrange PLV at other piston hole. 6) Knock slightly PLV to piston. 	sy
 (2 piston each). 5) Pick & arrange PLV at other piston hole. 6) Knock slightly PLV to piston. 	
5) Pick & arrange PLV at other piston hole.6) Knock slightly PLV to piston.	
6) Knock slightly PLV to piston.	
7) Arrange piston & Press PLV inside	
piston by using two hand button to	
activate hydraulic cylinder press	
(2 piston each).	
8) Air Blow & Clean Both PLV area.	
9) Arrange piston assy inside nylon box.	
Bearing	
List of bearing 1) Pick pinion bearing approx. 1 pcs and	
which put place on work table.	
needle bearing 2) Place needle bearing on top of the	
first then put bearing housing with numbering facing	ANSI
O-ring:	
• 700/8600 3) Place the bearing housing under the	
sta Pressing fixture. Both hand press the	
• ts83/73v Press button to activate the pressing	
bl-nanfang motion. Press the bearing fully and Figure 3.14: List of	•
• ts90 bc release the push button to end motion. bearing which put need	dle
• ts90 (O- 4) Put the bearing housing in fixture blow bearing first then put	-C
ring fx428 the O-ring area before insert O-ring. ring	
w) Insert O-ring properly into the groove.	
• ts93 ansi 1- Place the complete bearing housing	
5 assembly inside the container.	
• ts93 en5-7	
• 8900	

• gr400	
(nanfang)	
• gr500	
• ts83/89	
• 7400/8600	
List of bearing	1) Pick bearing housing approx. 1 pcs and
which put O-	place on work table. Insert O-ring into
ring first then	bearing housing. Press the O-ring fully
put needle	inside the B.hsg by mean of a pressing
bearing:	tool.
• ts90	2) Place needle bearing on top of bearing
• ts92	housing. Ensure orientation of needle
• bottom	bearing is correct. (Wording on top).
assy 2-5	3) Place bearing under press machine and Figure 3.15 : List of
• top assy 2-	press push button with both hands.
5	Needle bearing were insert in.
• (bl) 2/1865	4) Transfer assemble part to the box.
(ts73bl)	Walking Dearing
• ts83/73v bl	اونيۆسسىتى تېكنىكل ملىسىيا ملا

UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA

3.2.6 Develop time observation sheet

Time observation sheet is a method of gathering the data such as cycle time of the procedure of standard work for the each of model. This data is then used for further analysation to prove a theory or opinion and also to detect any pattern in a process. Figure 3.16 below shown the flowchart of developing the time observation sheet.



Figure 3.16: Flowchart of developing the time observation sheet.

The time observation form, also known as a form of process analysis, is a fundamental and often-used tool for lean practitioners and the implementation of the method of continuous time observation and not the method of work sampling. The first step is to draw the map of the work area. Mapping the work area is a strategic tool which helps organize successfully by providing a picture of the focus working areas. The information gather will give an accurate idea of the areas that need to be organized step-by-step. On a Standard Work Paper, draw a map of the working area. This is not the final edition of the Standard Work Sheet and it is merely a working document. It also recommend to make photocopy of the prototype map without any more markings on it so that if there is any error, this will speeds things along. Figure 3.17 below shown the map of the work area for Piston Assy 7/8600 model.



Figure 3.17: Standard Work Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

Next, watch the operators to perform once see the operator do his or her job once without having to write something, just to get a feel for the process. The operator will be an ordinary operator running at a reasonable speed not an expert or the slowpoke. On the Standard Work Sheet, watch the operator a second time, draw the operator's direction, and write down process steps. Include in the notes observation points. These are unique points of change that serve as limits between steps. They must be readily measurable, points that are discrete. This produces continuity in how the steps are recorded, eliminating variance that makes it more difficult to set a norm. Fill out the header information such the type/name of model, date, time, and person in charge. Different model has different steps and observation points. It is very important to write every detail for the steps to get accurate data. Write steps and observation points on the sheet and on your clipboard, put a blank sheet of paper under the observation sheet. This will be used to make any notes on issues the face. Collect the data by start the stopwatch at the beginning of the process until the last process. Record between 8-10 cycles to make the accurate cycle time for each steps. Finally summarize the data by calculate the total cycle time for each column, average time for each row and add up all the step times to get to total cycle time for developing the Standard Work Combination Sheet. The tallied stage times are compared with the actual times observed. This is because sometimes the operator is specified above and sometimes under the individual step times that are defined. If there is no special trigger that slows things down, they will normally come out of a fairly relatively near range.



3.2.7 Develop Standard Work Combination Sheet

Standard Work Combination Sheet is the most critical document to ensure the successfulness of lean, quality and management tool. When any problem is discovered, the first step that need to be confirmed is to make sure the procedures consistently followed. It also helps to produce the TAKT Time to make sure that the process is running smoothly. Standard Work Combination Sheet also can highlight out the incidents of waste and this indirectly helps eliminate waste which is very useful in VSM. Figure 3.18 below shown the flowchart of developing Standard Work Combination Sheet.



Figure 3.18: Flowchart of developing the Standard Work Combination Sheet

The key details related to the Standard Work Combination Sheet is the relationship between various parts of the working process and the pacing necessary between the different steps involved. As the sheet name indicates, it demonstrates how the various timing values, including the manual working time, walking time, as well as computer processing time, combine. First the header information is fill out such the type/name of model, date, time, and person in charge. For any individual operator working on the floor, these are further registered, and the data is then collected through different means of analysis. For deciding whether there is any substantial amount of waste in the delays between separate process phases, the Standard Work Combination Sheet can be very useful. Next, Coordinate the number with steps. Different model has different steps and observation points. It is very important to write every detail for the steps to get accurate data. The time taken for human movement as well as machine movement are the most significant points reported in the Standard Work Combination Sheet.

WALAYS/4

Furthermore, the TAKT time is calculated from the data that is collected. TAKT time is a calculation and a discipline that is focused on established and current concepts and practices of production. The maximum reasonable time to fulfil the customer's demands is TAKT time. In other words, TAKT Time is the pace at which the product must be produced to fulfil the customer's needs. Make sure to calculate and clearly mark the TAKT time on the Standard Work Combination Sheet. Knowing exactly where an employee is supposed to be at any point in a TAKT time allows managers to get immediate help when things go south. The formula of the TAKT time is as below:

$$T = \frac{T_a}{D}$$

T = TAKT time

Ta = Total Available Production Time

D = Average Customer Demand

Summarize the data by write in the name, and get the Standard Work Combination Sheet reviewed by the leader who is responsible for the work area. Standard Work Combination Sheet help keep stuff going smoothly. For the professional eye the Traditional Job Combination Sheet calls out waste accidents. When this waste is easily identified, removal of it is far more possible. Based on data recorded in a Standard Work Combination Sheet, some examples of waste that can be removed by some findings include the time an operator spends waiting for the machine to complete its mission, waiting for feedback from another machine, or waiting for another operator to perform some part of their job. This waiting is necessary often, and an integral part of the main line of work, but the two forms of downtime can be difficult to distinguish. This is where there is a Mix Sheet in play. It gives all the data and the current state of the production process, including an objective summary of the individual participation of each.



3.2.8. Develop the Value Stream Mapping (VSM)

VSM can create a comprehensive diagram of all steps in the work process. It is a reflection of the movement of products through your company from the supplier to the client. VSM shows all of the critical steps taken to produce value from start to finish in work process. It helps to imagine every mission on which the team operates and offers single status updates on the progress of each assignment. The flow chart shown in Figure 3.19 below describes as the whole view on the development of VSM.



Figure 3.19: Flow chart of the whole view on the development of VSM.

Before creating VSM, this following information need to gather first:

- Station Name / Model Run.
- Process.
- Quota per Shift.
- Gross Weight (Kg).
- Man Power.

Next, sort the Product Family Matrix by build sequence. A Product Family Matrix can be used to group the products into families. In order to use the matrix, state which process steps each product will use. Instead, look for groupings of specific steps in the process. The groupings are families of the products. The process steps are arranged with downstream processes last by order of flow. Downstream steps are certain steps in the process that are closest to the customer. The main difference between product families often is the use of downstream process steps. For product families, workflow configurations can be optimized by building in detours and arranging for the use of portable equipment to accommodate minor variations in the workflow.

Furthermore, choose one value stream to begin with. It is important to know which products or piece parts make up 80 per cent of the business and which products or piece parts make sense to group as a value stream (product family) together. Start by mapping a value stream at a time to keep things simple. It may benefit when when the research discusses 80 percent of what the company are creating, grouping together items or component parts from the other 20 percent with other value streams. This because they follow the same sequence of builds and have identical form, fit and function. Consider the impact that value stream has on the business unit when choosing the value stream to begin with, such as:

- Highest per cent of the volume of sales.
- Highest process.
- Highest Quota per Shift.
- Changes in the market which affect consumer demand.

It is needed to take a stroll around the shop floor when it's time to chart the family of items. This is a sure way to miss wasteful activity which is not reported by the system. Start at the end of the process, work the way upstream to the start to get a client-supplier perspective at every stage. Any waste can occur whether it's unnecessary or acceptable. In creating VSM, this data is needed:

- TAKT time.
- Cycle time or processing time.
- Lead-time
- Changeover time or waiting time
- Uptime.
- Yield.
- Element work time or operation time.

After all the data is collected, start building the VSM on a separate sheet of blank paper using symbols to indicate what's happening at each process. Measure the appropriate metrics on every step as they apply to the process. When all the steps in VSM have been identified and all the data applicable to the VSM have been filled in, summarize the data to get the big picture with the model of VSM. The data will tell about the flow of the process. With VSM, the list of kaizen opportunities will be identified in this process and start to prioritize them by level of impact that will make an improvement to the flow of the value stream. This will have an organized action plan to begin in making the improvements to the value stream and waste can be detected and eliminated.

CHAPTER 4

RESULT AND DISCUSSION

4.1 Data collection

4.1.1 Time Observation Sheet

Time observation sheet is a method of gathering the data such as cycle time of the procedure of standard work for the each of model. This data is then used for further analysis to prove a theory or opinion and also to detect any pattern in a process. Table 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.4, 4.5 and 4.6 below shows the time observation sheet of selected model based on the product family matrix. The steps of collecting the Time Observation Sheet are:

- 1. Drawn the map of the work area on a Standard Work Sheet.
- 2. Without wrote anything, watched the operator performed their work once just to get a feel for the process. An average operator is needed.
- 3. The operator is watched on a second time. The operator's path is drawn and the process steps is wrote down on the Standard Work Sheet.
- 4. Wrote down the header information, steps and observation points on a Time Observation Sheet.
- 5. Start the stopwatch at the beginning of the process. The observation point to start a cycle and that ends the previous cycle must be same.
- 6. Recorded between 10 cycles to make accurate estimates of cycle times for each step.
- 7. Calculate the total cycle time on the Time Observation Sheet.

Pro	ocess	Assembly Model : PISTON ASSY 7/8600	-	тім	IE C	DBS	ERV		ON	SH	ET		Da Ti	ate me	6/3/ 11.00	2020 I AM	Pers Chi	lo son In arge		_	dorma kaba
No		Work Content	1	2	З	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	Xmin	R	Element Vork Time	Problem
1	Pick &	: Arrange Piston	18	18	19		20	18		19	18	20							3	18	
2	Pick &	arrange PLV at piston hole	17	. 18	17				16									16	5	17	
3	Knock	slightly PLV to piston		6	7	6		7	7	6	7								1	6	
4	Arrang two ha	ge piston & press PLV inside piston by using ind button to activate hydraulic cylinder press	20		20		19	22	20	23		20						19	4	20	
5	Pick &	arrange PLV at other piston hole		28	27		29	30	27		28	27								28	
6	Knock	slightly PLV to piston	6	6	7	?	8	6	7		6	7.						6	2	6	
7	Arrang two ha	ge piston & Press PLV inside piston by using nd button to activate hydraulic cylinder press	20	24		20	20	19		21	20	22						19	5	20	
8	Air Blo	ow & Clean Both PLV area		30	30	29		31	29	30	30	29						29	2	30	
9	Arrang	ge piston assy inside nylon box	13			12	13	13		12	13							11	2	12	
10																					
11																					
12		MALAY	\$77																		
		CYCLE TIME	157	162	161	158	165	163	159	165	160	160						150	27	157	
		Form : L002 - TOS - Rev 2				Rules 1. at	s: least	10 cy	Ices o	bserv	ation;	2 tak	e the	shorte	est cy	cle tir	me fro	m obs	erved	cycles;	

Table 4.1: Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

Table 4.2: Time Observation Sheet for Spring adj. Screw assy ts73v bl model

Pro	Assembly Model : SPRING ADJ. SCREW ASSY TS73V BL		TIN		BS	ERV	ATI	ON	SHE	ET		Da	ate me	ŝ		Pers Ch	lo son In arge	-	9	dorma kaba 🚧		
No	Work Content	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	Xmin	R	Element Work Time	Problem		
1	Left hand pick pressure disc and right hand pick o- ring and hold it on right hand	10	10		10	10	30	10	10	10	10	A)	ŕS	17		me		20	A 10			
2	Left hand pick the adjusment screw and insert into pressure disc. Right hand pick o-ring and insert into the adjustment screw		60	70	70	60	60	70		8	70						60	20	70			
3	Place the part downward onto the fixture and right hand pick one retainer and place it on the fixture and follow bu pressing the retainer with a lever	40	50		30	50	40	20	30	20	30						20		30			
4	Place the part in the hole facing upwards and right hand pick two disc washer and follow by o-ring	40	50	60	60	50	60	50	60	50	50						40	20	40			
5	Place the complete spring adjustment screw in the box	10		10	10	10	10		10	10	10						10	0	10			
6																						
7																						
8																						
9																						
10																						
11																						
12																						
	CYCLE TIME	180	180	190	180	180	200	160	118	98	170						140	90	160			
Pro	ocess	Assembly Model : SPRING ADJ. SCREW ASSY TS32 - NEW		TIN		DBS	ERV		ON	SHE	ЕТ		Da Tir	ate me	6/3/ 11.00	2020 AM	N Pers	lo ion In			dorma	
-----	--	---	-------	------	------	-----	-----	-----	-----	-----	-----	-----	-----------	-----------	---------------	------------	-----------	--------------	----	---------	---------	---
No		Work Content	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	Xmin	R	Element	Problem	•
1	Right I Insert	hand take pressure disc and left hand take adjustment screw. pressure disc on the adjustment screw and place in on the jig		. 45	. 45		46	48	46	50		48						45		47		-
2	Pick c precis the pre the fin	one washer and place it into the adjustment sorew. Pick ion tip with left hand and take an oring with right hand. Place ecision tip and press the oring into the oring groove. Place ished part into the box. Pick all at the same time.		57	58	58		59	57	60		59							3	58		
3	Right I on the the pre	hand pick the finished part,check for the o-ring before load it fixture. Left hand pull the lever to activate the gripper to lock essure disc.	. 120	120	121	120		119	120	119	117	121						118	2	119		_
4	Right I the en	hand pick end cap and left hand pick o-ring. Place O-ring into d cap			23	25				25	25	26						23	4	25		-
5	After t grippe press	the torque test is done and cylinder is going up unlock the r with left hand. Right hand pick finisned part from fixture and the finished part into the end cap	24		26	26			23	22	27	26						22	6	23		_
6	Place	the final part in the box			10	11	14	15		11	11							10	5	- 11		-
7																						
8																						+
9																						_
10																						
11																						-
12		ALAYSIA																				
		CYCLE TIME	286	286	283	287	291	295	286	287	285	292						275	25	283		

Table 4.3: Time Observation Sheet for Spring Adj. Screw Assy Ts92 – New model

 Table 4.4: Time Observation Sheet for Damping Piston Assy ts91/92 model

Pro	ocess	Assembly Model : DAMPING PISTON ASSY TS91	1/92	TIN	1E C	DBS	ERV		ON	SHE	EET		Da Ti	ate me	6/3/ 11.00	2020 I AM	N Pers Cha	lo ion In arge			
No		Work Content	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	Xmin	В	Element Work Time	Problem
1	Pick &	Arrange Piston On Work Station	10	9	10		10		9	10	10	10	- ed	-				9	2	10	
2	Pick &	place roller into piston		13	15	15	16	15	14			15	X	78	17			13	2	۲ A ¹⁴	
3	Pick &	insert bolt between roller and piston		30	29	29	28	29	30	28	30	28						28	2	29	_
4	Loadp	biston on crimping station	30	31	31	30		30	31	30		29						29	2	30	
5	Crimp	piston by push 2 button	27	27	28	29	28		27	28		29							2	27	
6	Pick &	arrange piston assy inside nylon box	12	11	12	13	9	10	11	13	12	12							4	10	
7																					
8																					
9																					
10																					
11																					
12																					
		CYCLE TIME	123	121	125	127	120	120	122	123	121	123						115	14	120	

Pro	ocess Assembly Model: PINION BEARING BOTTOM ASSY 2-5		тім	IE C	BS	ERV		ON	SHE	ET		Da Ti	ate me	6/3/3 11.00	2020 AM	N Pers Cha	lo ion In arge			dorma kabaw	
No	Work Content	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	Xmin	R	Element Vork Time	Problem	
1	Pick bearing housing approx. 1 pos and place on work, table. Insert O-Ring into bearing housing. Press the O ring fully inside the B.hsg by mean of a pressing tool.	59	60	58	57	59	61	60	59	59	58						57	4	58		
2	Place needle bearing on top of bearing housing. Ensure orientation of needle bearing is correct. (wording on top)	19	19		20	22	18	19	19	21	20							3	19		-
3	Place bearing under press machine and press push button with both hands. Needle bearing were insert in.	24		23		27	25	23	23	23	24						23	4	24	_	_
4	Transfer assemble part to the box.	10	10	9	8	9	10	8		10								3	9		-
5																					-
6	-																				_
7																					
8																					_
9	-																				-
10																					_
11	a DLAY	81																			-
12	at me		1	10																	
	CYCLE TIME	112	113	111	109	117	114	110	110	113	113						106	14	110		

Table 4.5: Time Observation Sheet for Pinion Bearing Bottom Assy 2-5 model

Table 4.6: Time Observation Sheet for Bearing Housing Assy 7400/8600 model

Pro	Assembly Model : BEARING HOUSING ASSY 7400/8600		тім	EC	BS	ERV	ATI	ON	SH	EET	2	Da Ti	ate me	-	_	N Pers ICh	lo ion In arge	j,		dorma kaba
No	Work Content	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	Xmi n	R	Element Work Time	Problem
1	Pick pinion bearing approx. 1 pcs and place on work table.	. 20	20	20	20	20	. 20	20	20	20		<u> </u>	'S	TA			. 20	9	A 20	
2	Place needle bearing on top of the bearing housing with numbering facing upward.	20		20	20	20		20	20	20								0	20	_
3	Place the bearing housing under the Pressing fixture, both hand press the Press button to activate the pressing motion. Press the bearing fully and release the push button to end motion.	30	40	<u>30</u>	30	30	30	40		30	40							20	30	
4	Put the bearing housing in fixture blow the oring area before insert O-ring. Insert O-ring properly into the groove. Place the complete bearing housing assembly inside the container.	60	80	60	60	60	79.		70	50								30	50	
5																				
6																				
7																				
8																				
э																				
10																				
11																				
12																				
	CYCLE TIME	130	160	130	130	130	140	130	160	120	140						120	50	120	

4.1.2 Standard Work Combination Sheet

Standard Work Combination Sheet is the most critical document to ensure the successfulness of lean, quality and management tool. When any problem is discovered, the first step that need to be confirmed is to make sure the procedures consistently followed. It also helps to produce the TAKT Time to make sure that the process is running smoothly. Table 4.7, 4.8, 4.9, 4.10, 4.11 and 4.12 below shows the Standard Work Combination Sheet of selected model based on the Time Observation Sheet. Standard Work Combination Sheet also can streams out the incidents of waste and this indirectly helps eliminate the waste which is very useful in VSM.

		Ma	ST	AND	ARE	o wo	OF	RK	c	0	M	BIN	I A	TI	ON	IS	SH	EE	т					Dpei	rato	or N	umi	ber			1			d	or	m sb	a	~	
Mo And	del No d'Name	PISTON ASS	3Y 778	600	-		_								Date	Pre	par	ed		673	3/202	:0		Que	otal	Per	Shi	ift			1650			M	inua	. 	-	_	
Pr	ocess	Assembly													De	partr	nen	ŧ		FINI	зні	NG		Т	akt	Tin	ne			1	54.	5		Wa	ilkin	auc g	~	~~~	
Step	Decript	ion of Operatio	00		Time										-	/	/		Ор	eratio	on T	ime	(In	Sec	ond	ls)													
No	Deenp	ion or operation		Man	Auto	Walk		-11	r	ar	31		er		sr	.r	,	<u>.</u>	u		31	11		111	1		13		10		158	1		171		111	131	:	
1	Pick	& Arrango Pirton	31	18																																			
2	Pick & arro	ango PLV at pirtan I	halo	17		+																																	Ī
3	Knøcks	lightly PLV to pirto	in a	6	-	100						l																										T	1
4	Arrango pi pirtan by w activato h;	rtan & prozz PLV in ring two hand butto ydraulic cylindor p	sido anta ross	15	5								L																										-
5	Pick & arrang	o PLV at other pirt	on hole	28	SI	T															1																		-
6	Knøck <i>s</i>	lightly PLV to pirto	in	6																																			
7	Arrango pi pirtan by w activato h;	rton & Press PLV in ring two hand butto ydraulic cylinder p	urido an ta rorr	15	5																																		
8	Air Blou 8	: Cloan Both PLV ar	roa	30																					-					٦		2	M	~					
9	Arranqo pir	ton arry inride ny lo	in bax	12																										L		2	W	r,					
																																							-
																																							-
																																							-
		1	Total s	147	10		ſ																																

 Table 4.7: Standard Work Combination Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model



Table 4.8: Standard Work Combination Sheet for Spring adj. Screw assy ts73v bl model

Table 4.9: Standard Work Combination Sheet for Spring Adj. Screw Assy Ts92 - New





Table 4.10: Standard Work Combination Sheet for Damping Piston Assy ts91/92 model

Table 4.11: Standard Work Combination Sheet for Pinion Bearing Bottom Assy 2-5 model

		S	TAND	ARD	wo	RK	С	OM	BIN	AT	ION	SI	IE	T		0)porat	or Nur	nbor		1		d	lor kc	mc ibc	
Model N	e And Namo	PINION BEARING	воттом	ASSY 2-5	مر		4			2	DatoF	ropar	64	18/1	072018	7	Quota	PorSł	ift	~	2300	d,	м	anual		_
P	FB-C033	Arrombly	10	1		9					Dopo	irtmon	,e	FIN	SHIN	â	Tak	t Time	V		110.9	A	W.	alking	1	~~~
Stop No	Docript	ian of Operatian	Man	Time Auto	Walk	Εļ	K	ŅI,	ĸ	A.	sr	M	Ą	Oporat IF	ion Tim 17 11	e (In S	50c u n:	4r) 21 1	I E	141	151	161	17			ur
1	Pick boaring per and plac. Inrort O-Rin- houring. Pro inrido the B. prorring tool	howing approx. 1 5 on work table. ginto bearing rr the O-ring fully wg by mean of a	58																							
2	Placo noodla boaring how oriontation a corroct. (wo	boaring on top of ing. Enruro If noodlo boaring i rding on top)	. 19											~/												
3	Place bearin machine and uith both hai uere inrert i	q undor prozz prozz purh buttor odr. Noodlo boarir 5.	, ,a	24											/											
4	Transforass bax.	omblo part to tho	9																							
															l											
			_	<u> </u>																						
			_	-																						
			_																							
			+																							
			-																							
	1	Tet	alr 86	24			1111	1::::	1(11)	1::::		1	1:::	:1::::	[[]]]		1::::	1::::	1::::	1:::					1::::	1:::



Table 4.12: Standard Work Combination Sheet for Bearing Housing Assy 7400/8600 model

UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA

4.2 Current State Value Stream Mapping

4.2.1 **Process Flow at the Production Line**

To collect data for material and information flow, the production line in Sub-assembly department was observed. The goal of mapping the current state is to come up with real events of production material and informational flow. From the data collected in Table 4.13 below, the basic steps in VSM and waiting time between each process can be developed. Figure 4.1 below shows the VSM with data such as cycle time, TAKT time, defect, Value Added (VA) and Non-Value Added (NVA) of Piston Assy 7/8600 model.

First, the operator picked and arranged 10 piston onto the work place by using left hand. By using the right hand, the PLV is inserted into one end of the piston hole. The PLV is then knocked slightly by using hammer so that it locked inside the piston. This will ensure the PLV doesn't move so that it can increase the process efficiency of inserting the PLV using the hydraulic cylinder pressing machine.

Next, 2 piston is arranged onto the hydraulic cylinder pressing machine. This is because the hydraulic cylinder pressing machine can only process 2 piston in one cycle due to the limitation of the pressing rod's size. There is two end in each piston. Therefore, 10 cycle is needed to process 10 piston with 20 PLV. The operator used two press button to activate the hydraulic cylinder pressing machine and the machine will automatically press the PLV inside the piston.

The operator will then invert the piston, pick the PLV and insert the PLV into the other end of the piston hole. The PLV is knocked slightly by using hammer so that it locked inside the piston. The operator used two press button to activate the hydraulic cylinder pressing machine and the machine will automatically press the PLV inside the piston. After all 20 PLV are inserted in both end of the piston, the operator will clean up both end of the PLV area by using air blower. Lastly, the completed piston is arranged into the nylon box.



Table 4.13: Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

Figure 4.1: Current Value Stream Mapping for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

4.3 **Problem Analysis**

Before developing the future state VSM, the problem need to be analysed. Figure 4.2 below shown the Fishbone or Ishikawa cause and effect diagram of the potential problem of the assembly the Piston Assy 7/8600 model. There are several main issues in which should be considered by Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd such as:

- 1) The waiting time is exceed the TAKT time.
- 2) The inconsistency and bottleneck of certain process.
- 3) Inefficient Standard Work Sheet.
- 4) Too many repetitive process.



Figure 4.2: Fishbone or Ishikawa cause and effect diagram of the potential problem for Piston Assy 7/8600 model.

4.4 Future State Value Stream Mapping

A future state value stream mapping or future state map provides teams or people with a visual representation of the steps in a process after 6 or 12 months of improvements once the current state process map is complete. Problem areas become visible when a current state VSM is produced. Kaizen bursts should all mark the bottlenecks where inventory piles up, processes with the low efficiency, and operations that need excessive coordination, which suggest areas of focus for the future value stream map of the state. It should also illustrate the operations where work is moved downstream. The future value stream mapping is different from the current value stream mapping. The current value stream mapping helps to identify the overall objectives for progress, while future value stream mapping gives a plan on how continue to improve the current process. The aim of the future value stream mapping is to establish a mechanism that removes the obstacles in the current value stream mapping that have found. Figure 4.3 below shown the future value stream mapping for Piston Assy 7/8600 model.



Figure 4.3: Future Value Stream Mapping for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

4.4.1 Restructured the map of the work area of Standard Work Sheet

Based on the Time Observation Sheet on Piston Assy 7/8600 model in Table 4.14 below, there is inconsistency and also huge different on the Element Work Time between process No.2 and No.5 although the process is similar. The Element Work Time on process No.2 is 17 seconds while Element Work Time on process No.5 is 28 seconds. This inconsistency value may be influenced by the current map of the work area of Standard Work Sheet in Figure 4.4 below. Based on the observation on the work area, the operator always makes mistakes and causing them to spend more time when installing PLV into the piston. There is too much part on the right hand side (PLV, Hammer, Air Blow and Final Product) compared to left hand side which only has one part (Piston). This will cause a lot of stress on the operator's right hand and indirectly lead to few error which can cause bottleneck on the process.

		-	-							-			-		-				-	· · ·
Pro	Assembly Model : PISTON ASSY 7/8600		TIN	IE C	DBS	ERV	ATI	лс	SHE	ET		Da Tir	nte me	6737 11.00	2020 AM	Pers	No son In			dorma
Vo	Work Content	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	Xmin	R	Element	Problem
1	Pick & Arrange Piston	. 18	. 18	. 19		20	18	. 19	. 19	18	20						. 17			
2	Pick & arrange PLV at piston hole 👘		18	17	18			16	21			et	ę	2.0			16	5	17	
3	Knock slightly PLV to piston	6		7		6	7	7	6			X	ŻĊ				6	1	۲ Δ ⁶	
4	Arrange piston & press PLV inside piston by using two hand button to activate hydraulic cylinder press	20		20	22	19	22	20	23	20	20						19	4	20	
5	Pick & arrange PLV at other piston hole		28				30			28	27						27	3	28	
6	Knock slightly PLV to piston	6	6	7	7	8	6	7	6	6	7						6	2	6	
7	Arrange piston & Press PLV inside piston by using two hand button to activate hydraulic cylinder press	20	24		20	20	19	21		20								5	20	
8	Air Blow & Clean Both PLV area		30	30	29		31	29	30	30	29						29	2	30	
9	Arrange piston assy inside nylon box				12	13	13		12	13	12							2	12	
10																				
11																				
12																				
	CYCLE TIME	157	162	161	158	165	163	159	165	160	160						150	27	157	

 Table 4.14: Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model



Figure 4.4: Standard Work Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

AALAYSIA

Furthermore, the other problem that is detected during the observation is the operator spend more time inverting the piston position on process No.5. Currently, the operator will invert the piston after all 10 pieces is finishing the pressing process as shown in Figure 4.5 below. This process is inefficient and also time consuming.



Figure 4.5: The operator invert the piston after all 10 pieces is completed the pressing process

Overcoming this issue, the map of the work area of Standard Work Sheet is restructured. The part on the left and right hand side need to be balanced so that it doesn't cause a lot of stress on one of the hand. Figure 4.6 below shown the restructured map of the work area of Standard Work Sheet.



Figure 4.6: Standard Work Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

Moreover, the operator should immediately invert the piston each time after pressing the PLV inside the piston (after 2 pieces). This can eliminate the time wasting on process No.5. To validate this hypothesis, an experimental of assembling the Piston Assy 7/8600 model had been done. The operator had been asked to assembled the part using the proposed map of work area and also immediately invert the piston each time after pressing the PLV inside the piston (after 2 pieces) as shown in Figure 4.7 below.



Figure 4.7: The operator immediately invert the piston each time after pressing the PLV inside the piston (after 2 pieces)

Table 4.15 and 4.16 below shown the before and after improvement of Time Observation Sheet for assembling the Piston Assy 7/8600 model. It is shown that there was huge improvement in the Element Work Time for process No.5 compared to previous Element Work Time in Figure 4.10. The improvement is from 28 seconds to 17 seconds.



 Table 4.15: Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model before improvement

UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA

Table 4.16: Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model after improvement

Pro	ocess	Assembly		тім	IE C	DBS	ERV		ON	SHE	ЕТ		Da	ate	6/3/	2020	N Pers	lo ion In			dorma
		Model: Platola Aast model													1.00	AN	Cha	arge			Kabav
No		Work Content	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	Xmin	В	Element Vork Time	Problem
1	Pick &	Arrange Piston	18	19		20		18		19	18	18								18	
2	Pick &	arrange PLV at piston hole	16	18	. 16				19	17		16							4	16	
3	Knock	slightly PLV to piston			6	5	4	. 6			5							4	2	5	
4	Arrang two hai	e piston & press PLV inside piston by using nd button to activate hydraulic cylinder press	20	21	19		20	20	21	19		20						19	3	21	
5	Pick &	arrange PLV at other piston hole	19	17	17	18		16	16			17						16	(17	
6	Knock	slightly PLV to piston	6	6	5		6	6	5	4								4	2	5	
7	Arrang two hai	e piston & Press PLV inside piston by using nd button to activate hydraulic cylinder press	20	19	20	20	19	20			20	21						18	3	20	
8	Air Blo	w & Clean Both PLV area		31	31		31	29	28	30		29						28		29	
9	Arrang	e piston assy inside nylon box	13	11	13	12	14	13	13	11	13	12								12	
10																					
11																					
12																					
		CYCLE TIME	147	147	145	148	143	145	146	143	144	143						132	26	143	

Table 4.17 and 4.18 below shown the before and after improvement of Standard Work Combination Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model. It clearly shown that there was improvement in the waiting time. The waiting time is improved from +2.5 seconds to -11.5 seconds.

		ST	ANE	DAR	o w	ORK COMBI	NAT	TION SHEE	т	Operator Number	1	dorma kaba 🚧
Mo An	odel No d Name	PISTON ASSY 7/8	600			_		Date Prepared	6/3/2020	Quota Per Shift	1650	Manual —
Pr	ocess	Assembly						Department	FINISHING	Takt Time	154.5	Walking ^^^
Step No	Decript	ion of Operation	Man	Time	\/alk	-			Operation Time (I	n Seconds)		
1	Pick	à Arrango Pirtan	18	1 Idio				sr er vr				
2	Pick & arra	nge PLV at pirtan hale	17		-							
3	Knackz	ightly PLV to pirton	6				-					
4	Arrange på pirtan by w activate hj	tan & prozz PLV inzido ing two hand button to draulic cylindor prozz	15	5								
5	Pick & arrang	e PLV at other pirton hole	28		<u> </u>	-		<u> </u>				
6	Knackz	ightly PLV to pirton	6		<u> </u>							
7	Arrango pi pirtan by w activato hy	ton & Prozz PLV inrido ing tuo hand button to draulic cylindor prozz	15	45								
8	Air Blau S	Cloan Bath PLV area	30		1							2
9	Arrange pirt	an arzy inzide nylan bax	12								L Pw	\$
	Č.				<u> </u>	-						
		-			-							
	2											
	100		147	10								

Table 4.17: Standard Work Combination Sheet before improvement

Table 4.18: Standard Work Combination Sheet after improvement

_	IL III	UEDO			10.00	- 17 N H I / A	1 5.4	A 1 A 1	COLA-	115	ALCA
	INT	STA	ND	ARD	wo	ORK COMBINA	TION SHE	ET	Operator Number	Ę	dorma kaba
Mo An	odel No d Name	PISTON ASSY 7/8	500		_		Date Prepared	6/3/2020	Quota Per Shift	1650	Manual —
P	rocess	Assembly					Department	FINISHING	Takt Time	154.5	Walking ^^^
Step	Decript	ion of Operation		Time				Operation Time (I	n Seconds)		
NO			Man	Auto	∀alk	10' 20 30 40	50 60 70	001 0e 08	110 120 130	140 150 160	170 180 190'
1	Pick 8	i Arrange Piston	18								
2	Pick & arran	ge PLV at piston hole	16								
3	Knock sli	ghtly PLV to piston	5								
4	Arrange pis piston by us activate hy	ton & press PLV inside ing two hand button to draulic cylinder press	16	5							
5	Pick & arran	ge PLV at other piston hole	17								
6	Knock sli	ghtly PLV to piston	5					4			
7	Arrange pis piston by us activate hy	ton & Press PLV inside ing two hand button to draulic cylinder press	15	5							
8	Air Blow &	Clean Both PLV area	29								
9	Arrange pi	ston assy inside nylon box	12							- 弁	
									W 11	ait time: .5 sec	
					-						
					 						
		Total	133	10	<u> </u>	_					

4.4.2 Base plate supporting tool

The size of PLV and piston is shown in Figure 4.8 below. Currently, the process of inserting PLV inside the piston using the hydraulic cylinder press is limited to two piston per cycle. This is due to the size limitation of the hydraulics' pressing rod as shown in Figure 4.9 below. The PLV also can only be inserted in one end only per cycle. This is because the piston is quite unstable to stand if both end is inserted simultaneously. These two condition influenced the time taken to assemble the Piston Assy 7/8600.



UNIVER Figure 4.8: The size of PLV and piston MELAKA



Figure 4.9: The size of the hydraulics' pressing rod

To overcome this problem, a base plate supporting tool is needed. A base plate supporting tool helps to stabilize the position of the piston and enables the PLV to be inserted in both end simultaneously in one cycle. Figure 4.10 and 4.11 shows two design idea of base plate supporting tool. Design 1 allows 8 PLV to be inserted in one cycle. This design certainly saves a lot time because 8 PLV can be inserted in both end simultaneously in one cycle. However, the current size of the hydraulics' pressing rod is limited to two piston at one time. Therefore, if this design is applied, the hydraulics' pressing rod need to be replaced to a bigger size rod and this will increase the cost.



Figure 4.10: Design 1 of base plate supporting tool



Figure 4.11: Design 2 of base plate supporting tool

Design 2 allows 2 PLV to be inserted in both end simultaneously in one cycle. This design is the most suitable for the current process and size of the hydraulics' pressing rod as shown in Figure 4.12 below. It also eliminates few process of assembling the Piston Assy 7/8600 model.



Figure 4.12: Design 2 Base plate supporting tool with piston in hydraulic press machine

Table 4.19 and 4.20 shows the current and expected Time Observation Sheet after applied base supporting tool. The cycle time is improved from 157 seconds to 122 seconds.



Table 4.19: Current Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

Table 4.20: Expected Time Observation Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

	12 12							1.1					÷*	1	a c			Υ.	14		
Pro	Assembly		тім	IE C	DBS	ER\		ON	SH	ЕЕТ		D	ate me	6/3/	2020	Pers	Vo son In			dorma	1
	Niddel: FISTON ASST Motio			14			8 3	8. II		1.1	A		lie	1.00	AN	Chi	arge			kaba	4
No	Work Content	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	Xmin	R	Element Work Time	Problem	
1	Pick & Arrange Piston		19		20		. 18	. 19	19	18	18						. 17	3	18		
2	Pick & arrange PLV at piston hole		35	33				35			33						32	3	33		
3	Knock slightly PLV to piston	11		11	10	10	. 12		. 9	10	10						. 9	3	10		
4	Arrange piston & press PLV inside piston by using two hand button to activate hydraulic cylinder press	20	21	19		20	20			20	20						19		20		
5	Air Blow & Clean Both PLV area	30	31		30	31	29	28	30	30	29						28	3	29		
6	Arrange piston assy inside nylon box	13		13			13	13	11	13	12								12		
7																					
8																					
9																					
10																					
11																					
12																					
	CYCLE TIME	127	128	125	128	124	125	126	122	124	122						116	18	122		

Table 4.21 and 4.22 on the other hand shows the current and expected Standard Work Combination Sheet after applied base supporting tool. The waiting time is improved from +2.5 seconds to -32.5 seconds.



Table 4.21: Current Standard Work Combination Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

		STA	ND/	ARD	WC	RK	C	:0	ME	BIN	IAT	ПО	N	SI	HE	E.	Т			¢	Oper	ator	Nu	mb	er		1			d	or k(m	a	1
Me And	del No d Name	PISTON ASSY 7/86	500			_						Dal	te Pr	epa	red		6/3	/202	20		Quo	ita F	Per S	Shif	t		165	50		M	anua	l atio	-	_
Pr	ocess	Assembly										D	epari	tmer	nt	I	FINIS	SHI	١G		т	akt	Tim	e			154	4.5		Ŵ	alkin	3	~~	~
Step No	Decripti	ion of Operation		Time												Ope	eratio	on T	ime	(In S	Sec	ond:	5)											
			Man	Auto	Walk	1	°'	20	30		40	50	60		70	*0			100		110	120		130	14	10	150		160	17		*0	190'	
1	Pick &	Arrange Piston	18					1																										
2	Pick & arran	ge PLV at piston hole	33					H				٦																						
3	Knock sli	ghtly PLV to piston	10									L																						
4	Arrange pis piston by usi activate hy	ton & press PLV inside ing two hand button to draulic cylinder press	15	5	<u> </u>																													
5	Air Blow &	Clean Both PLV area	29		├──											1																		
6	Arrange pi:	ston assy inside nylon box	12																				¢											
7																								W 32	ait ti .5 se	ime: ec								
8					<u> </u>																													
			AN	AY.	SIA																													
		Ĩ			<u> </u>																													
		KW																																
		F																																
		Total	117	5											1.1.					/												1:-		
		83	171	n ;																														
		الأك	م	L.	~	م	1	4	/	_	2		2	-	_	2		(ŝ			~		-			9	١						

Table 4.22: Expected Standard Work Combination Sheet for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA



Figure 4.13: Future Value Stream Mapping for Piston Assy 7/8600 model



Figure 4.14: Comparison Cycle Time and TAKT time before and after lean for Piston Assy 7/8600 model based on demand



Figure 4.15: Cycle time and TAKT time before and after lean for Piston Assy 7/8600 model

Based on the Future VSM in Figure 4.13 above, the process of assembling the Piston Assy 7/8600 model had been reduced from 9 process to 6 process only. The process of arranging the PLV at piston hole is merge into one process only. This indirectly eliminated the inconsistency of the previous process of arranging the PLV at piston hole due to the mistake made by the operator causing them to spend more time when installing PLV into the piston. The process of inserting the PLV using the hydraulics' pressing rod also had been merged into one process only. With the help of base supporting tool, the process of inverting the piston is not necessary anymore. This is because the base supporting tool provide the pressure in both end of the PLV simultaneously in one cycle. The design of base supporting tool used is the most suitable for the current process and size of the hydraulics' pressing rod. Based on Figure 4.14 above, the cycle time after lean implementation is reduced from 157 seconds to 122 seconds. The waiting time is improved from +2.5 seconds to -32.5 seconds. Figure 4.15 above shown there is two major reduction in cycle time of the process which is process of Arranging the PLV inside the piston and process of pressing the PLV using the Hydraulic Press machine. The process of Arranging the PLV inside the piston is reduced from 45 seconds to 33 seconds while the process of pressing the PLV using the Hydraulic Press machine reduced from 40 seconds to 20 seconds.

CHAPTER 4

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

In conclusion, the new process of sub-assembly in Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd need to apply lean manufacturing to improve the productivity for their product realization process because it is a new process in the company. This first objectives to investigate the current process of each model in sub-assembly department based on the product family matrix and therefore only one total station name/model is selected based on the analysis and product family matrix with the most effective manufacturing process. Based on second objectives, after all process of data collection and analysis, the model that need to carry out lean tools to reduce the cost, waste, waiting time, defect and product delivery speed is Piston Assy 7/8600 model. The problem such as inefficient Standard Work sheet and bottleneck of process was analysed. Third objectives were achieved by developed the Current and Future state VSM, restructured the map of work area and created the design of base plate supporting tool to reduce the cycle time and waiting time. The results showed that the current cycle time for Piston Assy 7/8600 model was high and exceed the TAKT time. This is likely due to the inefficient Standard Work Sheet. Further research is recommended such as more innovative based supporting tool that suited the machine. This implementation of lean manufacturing tool will increase the productivity improvement of sub-assembly process in Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd.

REFERENCES

Soniya Parihar, Sanjay Jain, Dr. Lokesh Bajpai, 2012, Value Stream Mapping: A Case Study of Assembly Process, INTERNATIONAL JOURNAL OF ENGINEERING RESEARCH & TECHNOLOGY (IJERT) Volume 01, Issue 08 (October 2012),

Mitrogogos, Konstantinos, and Kazi Mohammed Saidul Huq. "Impact of Lean Manufacturing on Process Industries." (2018).

Lander, Eduardo & Liker, Jeffrey. (2007). The Toyota Production System and art: Making highly customized and creative products the Toyota way. International Journal of Production Research - INT J PROD RES. 45. 3681-3698. 10.1080/00207540701223519.

Netland, Torbjorn H., and Daryl J. Powell, eds. The Routledge companion to lean management. Taylor & Francis, 2016.

Choomlucksana, Juthamas, Monsiri Ongsaranakorn, and Phrompong Suksabai. "Improving the productivity of sheet metal stamping subassembly area using the application of lean manufacturing principles." Procedia Manufacturing 2 (2015): 102-107.

Gunaki, □ & Teli, S. & Siddiqui, F. (2015). A Review Paper on Productivity Improvement by Value Stream Mapping. Journal of Emerging Technologies and Innovative Research (JETIR). 2. 1119-1124.

Nguyen, Minh-Nhat, and Ngoc-Hien Do. "Re-engineering assembly line with lean techniques." Proceedia CIRP 40 (2016): 590-595.

Rajule, Ajinkya, et al. "Value Stream Mapping (VSM)–A Case Study in Manufacturing Facility." (2018).

Andrés-López, E., I. González-Requena, and A. Sanz-Lobera. "Lean service: reassessment of lean manufacturing for service activities." Procedia engineering 132.1 (2015): 23-30.

Boztinaztepe, Buket, and Fatih Canan. "Lean Tools for Reducing Production Time and Satisfying Employees: A Case Study." (2008).

Ibrahim, Ola. (2013). Total Quality management (TQM) and Continuous Improvement as Addressed by Researchers. International Journal of Scientific and Research Publications, Volume 3, Issue 10, October 2013 1 ISSN 2250-3153. 3. 2250-3153.

Jaffar, Ahmed & Kasolang, Salmiah & Abdul Ghaffar, Zulkifli & Mohamad, Nor & Mohamad, Mohd. (2015). Management of seven wastes: A case study in an automotive vendor. Jurnal Teknologi. 76. 10.11113/jt.v76.5668.

Hines, Peter & Found, Pauline & Griffiths, Gary & Harrison, Richard. (2008). Staying Lean: Thriving, Not Just Surviving.

Rahman, Nor Azian Abdul, Sariwati Mohd Sharif, and Mashitah Mohamed Esa. "Lean manufacturing case study with Kanban system implementation." Procedia Economics and Finance 7 (2013): 174-180.

Singh, Bhim & Garg, S.K. & Sharma, S.K. & Grewal, Chandandeep. (2010). Lean implementation and its benefits to production industry. International Journal of Lean Six Sigma. 1. 10.1108/20401461011049520.

Antony, J. (2011), "Six Sigma vs Lean: Some perspectives from leading academics and practitioners", International Journal of Productivity and Performance Management, Vol. 60 No. 2, pp. 185-190.

Nikiforova, Anastasija & Bicevska, Zane. (2018). Application of LEAN Principles to Improve Business Processes: a Case Study in a Latvian IT Company. 6. 10.22364/bjmc.2018.6.3.03.

Pearce, Antony & Pons, Dirk & Neitzert, Thomas. (2018). Implementing lean—Outcomes from SME case studies. Operations Research Perspectives. 5. 10.1016/j.orp.2018.02.002.

Rohani, Jafri Mohd, and Seyed Mojib Zahraee. "Production line analysis via value stream mapping: a lean manufacturing process of color industry." Procedia Manufacturing 2 (2015): 6-10.

Pârv, L (2017). Continuous improvement processes using Lean management tools: A case study.MATEC Web of Conferences, 94.

Blair, Ryan Douglas. Making assembly more lean: a case study in Malaysia. Diss. 2010.

Duggan, Kevin J. Creating mixed model value streams: practical lean techniques for building to demand. CRC Press, 2018.

Chaple, Anup & Narkhede, Balkrishna. (2017). Value stream mapping in a discrete manufacturing: A case study. 6. 55-67.

M. Bärring, D. Nåfors, D. Henriksen, D. Olsson, B. Johansson and U. Larsson, "A VSM approach to support data collection for a simulation model," 2017 Winter Simulation Conference (WSC), Las Vegas, NV, 2017, pp. 3928-3939, doi: 10.1109/WSC.2017.8248103.

Rasi, R. Z. R., et al. "Value stream mapping using simulation at metal manufacturing industry." Proceedings of the International Conference on Industrial Engineering and Operations Management. 2014.

Starovoytova, Diana. "Time-study of Rotary-Screen-Printing Operation." Industrial Engineering Letters 7.4 (2017): 24-35.

Lu, Jiunn-Chenn & Yang, Taho. (2014). Implementing lean standard work to solve a low workin-process buffer problem in a highly automated manufacturing environment. International Journal of Production Research. 53. 1-21. 10.1080/00207543.2014.937009.

Pereira, Ana, et al. "Reconfigurable standardized work in a lean company–a case study." Procedia Cirp 52 (2016): 239-244.

Puvanasvaran, A. P., M. N. H. Ab. Hamid, and S. S. Yoong. "Cycle time reduction for coil setup process through standard work: case study in ceramic industry." ARPN Journal of Engineering and Applied Sciences 13.1 (2018): 210-220.

Phoewhawm, Ravee. (2014). A Case Study on Kaizen as a Learning Tool for a Management Team. ASEAN Journal of Management & Innovation. 30.

Markulik, Stefan & Kozel, Robert. (2016). Transformation of product characteristics in terms of a management system. MM Science Journal. 2016. 900-902. 10.17973/MMSJ.2016_06_201607.

Čierna, Helena & Sujová, Erika & Ťavodová, M. (2016). Application of the Kaizen philosophy - a road to a learner business. 237-245. 10.15414/isd2016.s4.01.

Nenadal, J. Development of Customer Loyalty Measurement At Czech Companies. MM (Modern Machinery) Science Journal, October 2015. [online]. [7-6-2016]

Paraschivescu, Andrei Octavian, and Paul Claudiu COTÎRLEȚ. "Quality Continuous Improvement Strategies Kaizen Strategy--Comparative Analysis." Economy Transdisciplinarity Cognition 18.1 (2015). Shettar, Manjunath & Hiremath, Pavan & R, Nikhil & Chauhan, Vithal. (2015). KAIZEN – A case study. International Journal of Engineering Research and Applications. 5. 101-103.

Pambhar, Dharit & Awasthi, Shubham. (2017). A Case Study on Productivity Improvement of Assembly line using VSM Methodology.

Forno, Ana & Pereira, Fernando & Forcellini, Fernando & Kipper, Liane. (2014). Value Stream Mapping: a study about the problems and challenges found in the literature from the past 15 years about application of Lean tools. The International Journal of Advanced Manufacturing Technology. 72. 779-790. 10.1007/s00170-014-5712-z.

Muniyappa, Manjunath & Prasad H C, Shiva. (2014). Value Stream Mapping: A Lean Tool. The International Journal of Busniess Management. 02. 100-104.

Yuvamitra, Korakot & Lee, Jim & Dong, Kanjicai. (2017). Value Stream Mapping of Rope Manufacturing: A Case Study. International Journal of Manufacturing Engineering. 2017. 1-11. 10.1155/2017/8674187.

Akçagün, Engin. (2012). USING VALUE STREAM MAPPING AT APPAREL INDUSTRY: A CASE STUDY.

Xia, Wei & Sun, Jiwen. (2013). Simulation guided value stream mapping and lean improvement: A case study of a tubular machining facility. Journal of Industrial Engineering and Management. 6. 10.3926/jiem.532.

Jeong, Bong Keun, and Tom E. Yoon. "Improving IT process management through value stream mapping approach: A case study." JISTEM-Journal of Information Systems and Technology Management 13.3 (2016): 389-404.

Rohac, Tomas, and Martin Januska. "Value stream mapping demonstration on real case study." Procedia Engineering 100 (2015): 520-529.

APPENDICES

A. List of The total station name/model run in sub-assembly department



Figure 5.1, 5.2, and 5.3: List of The total station name/model run in sub-assembly department.

B. Good and information flow



Figure 5.4: Good and information flow

(Source: Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd)

UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA

C. Project planning schedule for PSM 1 and PSM 2



Figure 5.5: Project planning schedule for PSM 1 and PSM 2

UNIVERSITI TEKNIKAL MALAYSIA MELAKA

D. Product workplace in Sub-Assembly Department



Figure 5.6: Bearing housing workplace

(Source: Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd)



Figure 5.7: CBC machine



Figure 5.8: Piston workplace

(Source: Dormakaba Production Malaysia Sdn Bhd)



Figure 5.9: SAS workplace



Figure 5.10: Screw bag workplace

